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RESULTS e
Year Year Year Year Year
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December 2010 December 2009 December 2008 December 2007 December 2006
—E-EF “ZTNE —ZTNE —2TtHE —ETRE
+ZA=+-A tZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H +tZA=1+—-H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FET FAET FET TET
Revenue Wz 16,357 17,777 16,667 15,936 13,753
Profit before tax BRETADE 7 3,163 4,645 3,645 26,187 11,115
Income tax expense FEHiAX (536) (420) (29) (221) (1,039)
Profit attributable KREHEA
to owners of FE1E & F
the Company 2,627 4,225 3,616 25,966 10,076
Profit attributable to ARAHEA
owners of the Company JE 15
(excluding extra-ordinary (TEESE
items) LREEE) 2,627 4,225 3,616 25,966 10,076
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Financial Summary
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e
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % KA
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-EF “ZTNE —ZTNE —2TtHE —ETRE
+ZA=+-A tZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H +tZA=1+—-H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERn FET FAET FET FTET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZERE&E
Total assets LEHBE 147,824 144,774 141,871 139,410 148,578
Total liabilities BERE (18,110) (18,199) (19,518) (20,261) (55,982)
Net assets FEE 129,714 126,575 122,353 119,149 92,596
PER SHARE DATA (5302 62
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-ZF “ETNEF —ZTNF “ET+HF “ETREF
+=Zf=+-8 +-F=+-8 +-A=+—-B +-F=+-8B +-A=+—-H
HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents
Al Al Al Al Al
Earnings per share GRAR
(excluding extra-ordinary (NBESE
items) "BEMIEE) 0.49 0.79 0.68 4.92 1.94
Net book value per share BREEFE 24.28 23.76 22.97 22.36 17.81
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
 YNRESE PN S R
(excluding extra-ordinary items)
(TBREELEMER)
HK$'000 TH57T

20,000
10,000 I

Asat 31/12/2006  31/12/2007 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2010

NET BOOK VALUE PER SHARE
A e Y i {3

HK Cents 71l
25

20
15
10
5
0

As at 31/12/2006 31/12/2007 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2010
ES

EARNINGS PER SHARE
B 2 A

(excluding extra-ordinary items)
(TEFEELEMER)
HK Cents 7l
5

: H A m

Asat 31/12/2006 31/12/2007 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2010
EES



Chairman’s Statement

F

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of
the Company, | am pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company together
with our subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 (“2010” or the “current year” or
“Reporting year” or the “year under review”) to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group consolidated
revenue for the current year decreased 8% to approximately
HK$16.36 million (2009: approximately HK$17.78 million).
Net profit attributable to shareholders was approximately
HK$2.63 million (2009: HK$4.23 million). Basic earnings per
share were approximately 0.49 HK cent for the year ended 31
December 2010. Total assets less current liabilities increased by
approximately 2.8%, a net increase by approximately HK$3.9
million to approximately HK$144.37 million as compared with
HK$140.49 million as at 31 December 2009. All of these
achievements clearly demonstrated the persistent efforts made by
the management and employees of the Group in developing its
business.

DIVIDENDS

The Company did not propose any dividends for the year ended
31 December 2010. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the overall operating environment contains many
uncertainties, such as inflation pressure which resulted in rise
in operation costs, especially material costs and labour costs,
as well as market competition in hotel business was always
keen. To meet the challenges arising from the overall operating
environment, the Group will delicate efforts to develop our core
business, as well as continue to adopt a prudent approach in our
business development and financial strategy. Besides, the Group
will review our existing businesses and update the business plans
and strategies regularly. Our aim is to have better utilization of the
Group’s resource in order to maximize every shareholder’s interest.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude
to all shareholders, business partners and customers for their
support, and to all our colleagues for their efforts, hard work and
selfless dedication. Their hardwork represents the foundation for
the Group’s future business development.

Wang Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2011
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
amounted to approximately HK$16.36 million, representing an
decrease by approximately 8% as compared to approximately
HK$17.78 million in the previous year. The decrease is mainly due
to the hotel operator discontinued its Chinese catering operation
and let out the correspondence restaurant at the end of 2009.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the net profit attributable
to shareholders was approximately HK$2.63 million (2009:
HK$4.23 million) representing a decrease by 37.8% over the
previous year. Basic earnings per share were approximately 0.49
HK cent for the year ended 31 December 2010 as compared
to basic earnings per share of approximately 0.79 HK cent last
year. The decrease in net profit and earnings per share is due to
the waiver of other payable together with the gain in fair value
decrease by approximately 60% to HK$4.19 million (2009:
HK$10.4 million). For the year ended 31 December 2010, the
gearing ratio (divided non-current liabilities by equity plus non-
current liabilities multiple by 100 which results in percentage) of the
Group was 10.2% (2009: 9.9%).

During the year under review, no impairment loss in respect of
prepaid lease payment and property, plant and equipment is
accounted for (2009: HK$5.19 million).

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

A. Star-rated hotel operation

Star-rated hotel operation is the main source of revenue
for the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2010,
turnover of the hotel was approximately HK$15.08 million
(2009: HK$16.41 million), representing an decrease of
approximately 8% from the corresponding financial year.

For the year under review, the Occupancy Rate was
approximately 56.1% (2009: 54.8%) representing an increase
of 2.4% over the previous year. Average Daily Rate (ADR)
was approximately RMB215 (2009: RMB205) representing
an increase of 4.9% over the previous year.
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The following table sets out the amount and percentage of
contributions from different businesses of the star-rated hotel
operation for the year ended 31 December 2010, together
with comparative figures of 2009:

31 December 2010

HE-Z—ZTF+-A=+—HI"
Z’»‘%.i?&/@%%@ﬁéx’\*ﬁ%ﬁ%m
EEARELEEFEREOLE_ZT
NERBEE&RNT

31 December 2009

“E-Bf+t-A=t-B _—TTAFt-A=1—H

HK$ in % in HKS in % in
thousand turnover thousand turnover
e HEEE
THERT Btk FHEL Bt
Accommodation revenue HREHEEWA 12,798 85% 11,908 73%
Catering revenue BHRBWA 275 2% 3,116 19%
Rental revenue HAEEA 2,012 13% 1,385 8%
15,085 100% 16,409 100%

Accommodation revenue RSB BRA

The gradual recovery of the global economy led to the
rebound in tourism industry, coupled with the PRC
Government’s policy of expanding domestic demand,
allowed the steady improvement in the operating
environment of hotel industry during 2010. Despite the
cost inflation during the year, the influence to the Group
was limited as it focusing on containing costs and was
able to share part of the rising costs with its customers.
The accommodation revenue amounted to approximately
HK$12.80 million for the year under review, representing
an increase of approximately 7.5% over the last year. Or
slightly increase of 3.4% when the appreciation of Renminbi
excluded.
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Catering and rental revenue

In order to stabilized the income of hotel operation, at
the end of 2009, the hotel operator let out the Chinese
restaurant in the Group’s Hotel. On the one hand, this
contributed to approximately HK$0.85 million in rental
revenue during the year under review. On the other hand,
there is no longer a corresponding catering income and
the total catering revenue of the Group’s Hotel dropped
accordingly.

In 2011, we will continue to strengthen cost management
and risk control, optimize the resources and management
flow of the hotel operation, improve its ability to respond to
contingencies and enhance the overall economic efficiency.

Hong Kong properties held by the
group

The occupancy rate for the properties of the Group nearly
full during the year under review. It brought steady rental
income to the Group. For the year ended 31 December
2010, the rental income of the properties in Hong Kong
was approximately HK$1.27 million, while last year's was
approximately HK$1.37 million. The decrease is due to the
disposal of correspondence investment property at the end
of 2009.

With the support of the strong local economy, we are
confident in delivering continued revenue growth in 2011.
Rental reversion and stable occupancy will drive revenue
growth for the Group’s properties.

During the year under review, no gain on disposal of
investment property is accounted for (2009: HK$1.41
million).
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C. Piano manufacturing

The Group diversified its business into the piano
manufacturing sector by acquiring a 25% equity interest
of Harmony Piano in 2005. This business interest brought
steady profit to the Group for the year under review.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Looking forward, despite the uncertainty will still remain in the
global economy. However, it remains a year full of challenges and
opportunities. The Group will continue to upholding a standardized
and market-oriented operation model and well prepared for the
challenges ahead. As always, the Group is improving profitability
and generating good returns to our shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a net cash balance of
approximately HK$37.91 million (2009: HK$35.83 million). The
Group’s net asset value (assets less liabilities) was approximately
HK$129.71 million (2009: HK$126.57 million), with a liquidity ratio
(ratio of current assets to current liabilities) of 11.90 (2009: 8.97).
This high level of liquidity and available funding will enable the
Group to meet its expected future working capital requirements
and to take advantage of growth opportunities for the business.
During the year, there was no material change in the Group’s
funding and treasury policy. The Directors do not expect the
Company to experience any problem with liquidity and financial
resources in foreseeable future.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has not charged any of its
assets.
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Capital Structure of the Group

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
Operating outgoings incurred by the Group’s subsidiary in the
mainland China are mainly denominated in RMB as well as its
revenue. The management is of the opinion that the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange rate risks is not significant and
hedging through the use of derivative instruments is considered
unnecessary. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates
of Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi may have an impact on the
operating results of the Group.

The funding and treasury policies of existing subsidiaries of the
Group are centrally managed and controlled by the Group’s senior
management in Hong Kong.

Substantial Disposal and Acquisitions

The Group had not participated in any substantial acquisition and
disposal during the year under review.

Contingent Liability

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liability during the year.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had approximately 122
employees in Hong Kong and Xiamen. The remuneration package
was determined with reference to performance and the prevailing
market rate. The Group also provides employees with training,
the opportunity to join its mandatory provident fund scheme and
medical insurance cover.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Xiaowu, aged 53, is the Chairman of the Group, a
director and Vice Chairman of HC Technology Capital Company
Limited and Vice General Manager of Fujian Huamin Industrial
Group Company Limited, the ultimate controlling shareholder of
the Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in December 2003 and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Wang has over 25 years’ senior management experience
including Assistant President and General Manager in the Treasury
Department and International Finance Department in Fujian
International Trust and Investment Corporation prior to joining the
Group.

Mr. Wang acquired his Bachelor Degree in Electrical and
Mechanical Engineering from Tsinghua University in the PRC and
Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of
Glasgow in the UK.

Mr. WANG Ruilian, aged 47, is the General Manager of the
Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in July 2006 and is responsible
for the daily operations and execution of the strategies developed
by the Board. Mr. Wang has over 20 years’ experience in
management and finance. Mr. Wang has previously been sent to
overseas companies to take up a number of senior management
posts, including a director and vice general manager of the Finance
Department of Fujian Investment and Development Company
Limited, and the managing director of Fujian Enterprises (Hungary)
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wang acquired his Bachelor Degree in Economics from
Xiamen University in the PRC and Master Degree of International
Management from Australian National University in Australia.

Mr. LIU Xiaoting, aged 45, is the Vice General Manager of the
Group. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2004 and assists
the General Manager for the daily operations. Mr. Liu has over 20
years’ experience in finance management. Mr. Liu has taken up a
number of management posts, included the related Department
of Fujian Provincial People’s Government; Director of Fujian Hua
Min Import & Export Co., Ltd.; Assistant General Manager and
the in charge of Finance Department of Fujian Industrial Company
Limited; Financial Controller of trading firm in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Biography

o i

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Qiang, aged 44, is the General Manager of Investment
and Planning Department of Fujian Huamin Industrial Group
Company Limited. Mr. Feng joined the Group in January 2005.
He spent years of research in the Chinese Academy of Social
Science at Fujian for corporate strategies and reforms. He also has
practical experience in corporate investment planning, operational
management and corporate restructuring during his service in
the government of Fujian Province and its related companies. Mr.
Feng has over 24 years’ corporation and investment management
experience.

Mr. Feng has a Bachelor Degree in Economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics.

Mr. YE Tao, aged 39, is the Deputy Managing Director of Sino
Earn Holdings Limited. Mr. Ye joined the Group in September
2004. Mr. Ye has over 10 years’ management experience. Save as
disclosed herein, Mr. Ye did not held any directorship in other listed
public companies within the past 3 years.

Mr. Ye graduated from Fuzhou University with a Bachelor Degree
in Economics and acquired his Master Degree in Finance from
Xiamen University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, S.B.S, aged 76, was the Delegate of the
National People’s Congress (10th Session), he is currently the Vice
Chairman of BOC International Holdings Limited, the Honorary
Chairman of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Association,
the Honorary President of Supervision of Hong Kong Fukien
Chamber of Commerce, the Vice Chairman of Fujian-Hong
Kong Economic Cooperation, the Life Honorary Chairman of the
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce and the Consultant of
the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, the Honorary
President of Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is
also the Independent Non-executive Director of Bank of China
International Limited, CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited (was withdrawn of its listing on 5 November 2008), Citic
Bank International Limited (formerly known as Citic Ka Wah Bank
Limited), China Overseas Land & Investment Limited, Yuzhou
Properties Company Limited and Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited. Mr.
Lam was awarded the HKSAR Silver Bauhinia Star in 2008.

Mr. CHEUNG Wah Fung Christopher, JP, aged 59, joined
the Group in December 2003. He is the Chairman of Christfund
Securities Limited, Christfund Futures Limited, Christfund Finance
Limited and Christfund Corporate Finance Limited, a Non-
executive Director of Tongda Group Holdings Limited. He serves
as a Member of the People’s Political Consultative Conference of
PRC, the Honorary President of Hong Kong Securities Association
Limited, chairman of the Council Member of the Chinese Overseas
Friendship Association, Deputy Secretary of the Friends of
Hong Kong Association, a Council Member (1997-2000) of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and a Director (1998-2000) of the
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited, Committee
Member of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, the
Honorary President of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Association
and Member of the Standing Committee of the Federation of
Commerce and Industry of Guangdong Province and Mr. Cheung
acquired his Master Degree in MBA from City University of Hong
Kong and was appointed as Justice of Peace by the Chief
Executive of the HKSAR Government in 2000.
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Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim, FCPA (Aust,), CPA (Macau), FCFA (Practising),
aged 75, joined the Group in September 2004. He is the founder
and Senior Partner of PKF. Mr. Leung, is a Non-executive Director
of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited,
an Independent Non-executive Director of a number of listed
companies namely Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd., YGM Trading Ltd.,
S E A Holdings Ltd., High Fashion International Ltd. and Phoenix
Satellite Television Holdings Ltd..
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The directors present the directors’ report and the consolidated
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are hotel business and
property investment and those of its subsidiaries are disclosed in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
principal activities and geographical area of operation for the year
ended 31 December 2010 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results and cash flow of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 and the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in the
financial statements on pages 47 to 138.

DIVIDENDS

The Company did not propose any dividends for the year ended
31 December 2010. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the statement of net assets/liabilities
of the Group for the last financial years is set out on pages 4 to 6.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and the Group’s largest customer accounted for 25.9%
and 6.5% (2009: 16.8% and 4%) respectively of the Group’s total
turnover for the year. The aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers and the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for 40.6% and 19.8% (2009: 54.6% and 15.7%)
respectively of the Group’s total purchase for the year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest suppliers and customers during the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out on page 49 and in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Details of the movements in prepaid lease payments of the Group
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 December 2010, the investment properties of the Group
were revalued by an independent firm of professional surveyor
and property valuer on an open market value basis at HK$28.68
million. Details of these and other movements during the year
in the investment properties of the Group are set out in pages
139 to 140 and note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates for the
year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in notes 18 and 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOAN AND OTHER

There were no outstanding bank loan and other borrowings by the
Company and the Group at 31 December 2010.

CAPITALISED BORROWING COSTS

No borrowing costs were being capitalised during the year ended
31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors of the Company
(including our independent executive Directors) believe that the
related party transactions set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements are carried out in the ordinary course of
business and on normal commercial terms.

For the purpose of the related party transactions set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of the
Company confirms that, none of them constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Transactions listed in note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements do not constitute discloseable connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2010 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. WANG Xiaowu (Chairman)

Mr. WANG Ruilian
Mr. LIU Xiaoting

Non-executive directors:

Mr. FENG Qiang
Mr. YE Tao
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Independent Non-executive directors:

Mr. LAM Kwong Siu
Mr. CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher
Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim

(re-appointed on 24 September 2010)

In accordance with article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to one third shall retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election.

Mr. Leung Hok Lim has since 24 September 2004 been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with tenure
of two years and was reappointed at most two times with
tenure of two years and expired on 23 September 2010, and
was reappointed again with tenure of two years, expiring on 23
September 2012. Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung,
Christopher have been Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company since 11 December 2003 with tenure of two years
and were reappointed at most two times with tenure of two
years and expired on 10 December 2009 and were reappointed
on 11 December 2009 with tenure of two years, expiring on 10
December 2011.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHY

Biography of the Company’s directors is set out on pages 14 to
17.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS BY
DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the Directors in the
shares, underlying shares, and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which (a) were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified
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contained in Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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Note:

These interests represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of
share options granted by the Company to Mr. Wang Xiaowu as beneficial
owners, the details of which are set out in the Section “Share Options”
below.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, none of the directors of
the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV
of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries
engaged in any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the directors of the Company nor their
respective associates had any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with any business of the
Group.

INTERESTS IN ASSETS OF THE
GROUP

During the year, none of the directors of the Company had any
direct or indirect interests in any assets which have been acquired
or disposed of, or leased to, or which are proposed to be acquired
or disposed of or leased to, the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company was materially interested in
any contract or arrangement subsisting during or at the end of the
year which is significant in relation to the business of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2010, as far as is known to the directors of the
Company and the Company, and as confirmed upon reasonable
enquiry, the register maintained by the Company under section
336 of the SFO shows that the following persons (not being
directors and employees of the Company) had, or were deemed
to have, interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the
Company or the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Company or had an option in
respect of such capital were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the
company

Name of Shareholders
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Company held

iR A® EEBRITALH
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HC Technology Capital Company Limited (“HC Technology”) 279,241,379 (a) 52.3
ERREEREERAR ([FESBE])
Fujian Investment and Development Company Limited (“FIDC”) 279,241,379 (a) 52.3
ERRERERBR AR ([ERIEE])
Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited (“FHIG”) 279,241,379 (a) 52.3
FREREE(FE)BRAR ([BREREE (KE)])
Sino Earn Holdings Limited (“Sino Earn”) 72,553,382 (b) 13.6
ERZ (BEB)ERBRAR (1FE])
Fujian Huaxing Trust & Investment Company (‘FHTI”) 72,553,382 (b) 13.6
BRERFEREQR ([FEHEFFE])
Fujian Huaxing Industrial Company (‘FHIC”) 72,553,382 (b) 13.6

BEEREXQA ([FHEX])
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Notes:

(@) HC Technology beneficially holds 279,241,379 shares in
the Company. Pursuant to the SFO, FHIG is deemed to be
interested in the 279,241,379 shares by virtue of its being
beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of FIDC and FIDC is deemed to be beneficially interested in
100% of the issued share capital of HC Technology. FHIG is
a state-owned corporation of the PRC.

(b) Sino Earn benéeficially holds 72,553,382 shares in the
Company. Pursuant to the SFO, each of FHTI and FHIC is
deemed to be interested in the 72,553,382 shares by virtue
of their being beneficially interested in 30% and 70% of the
issued share capital of Sino Earn respectively. Both FHTI
and FHIC are state-owned corporations of the PRC.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2010, the directors
of the Company and the Company, as confirmed upon reasonable
enquiry made by them and as indicated in the register maintained
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, were not aware
of any other persons (other than directors and employees of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares (including any
interests in options in respect of such capital), which are required
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who owned any interests or short positions to be recorded in the
register under Section 336 of the SFO; or who was, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Company or had any
option in respect of such capital.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

On 22 January 1997, the Company approved a share option
scheme (the “Existing Scheme”) under which the Directors may,
at their discretion, invite any employee or executive directors of
the Company and the Group to take up options to subscribe
for shares in the capital of the Company at any time during the
ten years from the date of offer. The subscription price of the
Company’s shares shall be referred to the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as quoted on the main board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for five
dealings days immediately preceding the offer date. The maximum
number of shares on which options may be granted may not
exceed 10% of the ordinary share capital of the Company in issue
from time to time. No options of the Company were being granted
or outstanding since the year ended 2002.

On 23 August 2001, the Stock Exchange introduced changes to
the provisions of the Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) in relation to share option schemes which came
into effect on 1 September 2001. As a result of the amendments
to the Listing Rules, the Board has not been able to grant options
under the Existing Scheme. In compliance with the amendments
to the Listing Rules, by an ordinary resolution passed on 10 May
2004, the Company terminated the Existing Scheme and adopted
a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”).

Purpose of the share options scheme

The purpose of the share options scheme is to provide participants
of the same with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage them to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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Eligible participants of the share options
scheme

() any executive, non-executive or independent non-executive
director of any member of the Group or an entity in which the
Group holds an interest (“Affiliate”); (i) any employee or officer
(whether full time or part time)(“Employee”) of the Group or an
Affiliate; (i) any shareholder of any member of the Group or an
Affiliate who has, in the opinion of the Board, contributed or may
contribute to the development and growth of the Group; (iv) any
customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant or adviser of or
contractor to any member of the Group or an Affiliate; or (v) the
trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any director,
Employee, customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant or adviser
of or contractor to any member of the Group or an Affiliate; or (vi) a
company beneficially owned by any director, Employee, consultant,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor any
member of the Group or an Affiliate.

Total number of securities issuable

The maximum number of shares which may be granted under the
share options scheme and any other schemes involving the issue
or grant of options or similar rights over shares or other securities
by the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the share options scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

Unless approved by the shareholders, no option may be granted
to any eligible participants which if exercised in full would result in
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options already granted or to be granted to such eligible
participant under the share options scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of such new
grant.
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Period to take up share options and
minimum period to hold before exercise

There is no minimum period within which the shares option must
be taken up or for which a share option must be held before it can
be exercised.

Amount payable to take up share options
and time to accept offer

An offer for the granting of share options under the share options
scheme shall be accepted within 28 days from the offer date and
by way of payment of a consideration of HK$1.

Maximum period for exercising on
option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the share options scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board of Directors to each
participant, which period may commence on the date on which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any event not
more than 10 years from the date of grant of the option.

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company and shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the relevant option, which must be a business day;

(ii) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant option; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.
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Life of the share options scheme

The share options scheme shall be valid and effective for a period

Yk Jbe il it 8 2 A7 308

of two years commencing on the date of adoption of the share KA

options scheme.

BT ENERN AR MFABR

The details of share options outstanding as at 31 December 2010 BRIBRARARAKRER_ZZMFRATH

as granted under the New Scheme adopted by the Company’s

shareholders on 10 May 2004 are as follows:

FMEME BEL TR —F S5+ A

ST -HARRTEZBRERNDFAN

T
Options Options Options Options
held as at exercised lapsed held as at % of
Date of 1 January during during 31 December Nature of ~ Exercise Exercise existing
grant 2010 the Period the Period 2010 interests price period Shares
RoZ-2% RoB-2%
-fA-H RER MBR +t=A=t-H tRE
BEZ gz S BEZ Bz Rtz
BB BRE BRE BRE BRE id-| e TEH BAl
HK$
BT
Wang Xiaowu 3 June 2004 1,040,000 (1,040,000) - - Personal 0.184 3 June 2004- 0.20
TE “ZINF @A 2 June 2014
~AZH “TTNE
~NAZHZE
—F-mE
~AZR
Chen Danyun 3 June 2004 420,000 (420,000) - - Personal 0.184 3 June 2004- 0.08
BRE “ETME A 2 June 2014
~NAZH “ITNE
~AZBRE
“E-mE
~AZH
1,460,000 (1,460,000) - -

The consideration to be paid upon acceptance of the options by

each of the grantees is HK$1.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

On 4 March 2008, Xiamen Plaza entered into a management
contract (“Management Contract”) with Friendship International
in relation to the appointment of Friendship International to
manage the daily operations of the Hotel for a period of five
years. Friendship International has paid RMB5 million as security
deposit to Xiamen Plaza, which is refundable upon expiry of the
Management Contract.

The Hotel remains the property of the Group at all times under the
Management Contract. Xiamen Plaza is entitled to receive income
from Friendship International which is calculated in accordance
with the terms of the Management Contract.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in China are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.
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PURCHASES, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries, had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors consider that throughout the year ended 31
December 2010, the Company has complied with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code on Corporate
Governance”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
The Company had received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a verbal confirmation of his independence.

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance.
The Company had made specific enquiries to all Directors
regarding any non-compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance during the year ended 31 December 2010, and
had received confirmations from all Directors that they had fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance during the year ended 31 December 2010.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, the
Model Code, as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Specific enquiry has been made with all
Directors and the Directors have complied with the requirements
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2010.

pud

it ST~ o 5 O Il AR 2 )
Z bl 2

BE-T—TF+-A=+—ALLEE.
ARAKAKBATDDEBE - R
BEAAARZ ETES -

o 3R

EERR/ ARAR_ZE—ZFHE+_-A
=t—BEE-BEETLETRAME D
el c EXEREMR TR (IREERT
A1) ARBEWE G —UBILIERITE
ERARME 2B B LA ORER -

RAGBERMBEEARTA - ARFIER
2REFETAN_Z—ZF+-_A=+—H
FEBRERBESTAN-—FEHEEE
HOMESEHERERZE—ZF+=A
T+ —HFER2ENCEERTRIZE
IR E °

AT 2 AR By 2 B
Sy

AEBEDRABEN EHRAMEE+ERE
FETESFRHZEETR FRERXE
BESFZBEETA - BRAMABESEHELS
EERE SESENHE_T-—TF+=
A=+—RBLEFER —BEETEETA
ZIRTE



Directors” Report

R

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Group was established in 1999.
Currently, it comprises three members, all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim
who possesses professional accounting qualification, Mr. Lam
Kwong Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher. Mr. Leung
Hok Lim is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee adopted the term of reference in accordance with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices issued by the Stock
Exchange. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
the review and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. Two meetings have been held by
the Audit Committee during the year. Each Committee meeting
was provided with necessary financial information of the Group for
consideration, review and assessment of major issues.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending
candidates to fill vacancies in the Board based on their
qualifications, abilities and potential contribution to our Company
and to ensure fair and transparent procedures for the appointment,
re-election and removal of directors to the Board. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on our
Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee was formed by the Group in March
2005. The Committee currently comprises three members, all
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher, Mr. Leung Hok Lim and Mr. Lam
Kwong Siu, whereas Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher was
nominated as the Chairman of the committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the members of the
Nomination Committee met once and resolved to propose the
reappointment of our one independent non-executive Director for
a term of two years from 24 September 2010 to 23 September
2012 and submitted the same to the Board for approval.

BEZERERAT
—E-EFFR

wHEEHG

AEBER-NNNERIBRLZBEE -
REEEH-_HREEN REH BB
FNTES BRRERELE (ABEXRS
FHENER) MEREERKERLE-R
BREEABVEZEGIR -ERZEBEE
ERMEB X FATRMA X ERT R TR
—RZBREE - BRLZBEEZIERK
BIEEN MR A RE 2 MR R
NHEZE - BERREERAFEERITM
REHZ - BREZBEGRBERHLAL
AEBFBER  HKEEE 5 M E
THEFIRZEREE

RHZHT

REZESAEREBEERRAAENEE
FRERHARBNBEETR  MEFSHE
NBEREZETRMEREEZZR &
BREENEFAEAFRERZFRA -
RAZBEENREREHN AR AFL -

AEBR _ZERF=-AKIREEZE
g -HARZEER=-ENEBAENK RESE
MIERITESR  BREREESLE  RERE
ERMERTLE REREERRAEZER
XFe

A—EB—BE+ - A=+—HFE BEELZE
BgRT-— gk AxBABAHA_ZT %
FRARAZFWNBAEZE_ZE——FHLA-+=
HUEBIETARNR (B IERTES
FHRF WRXESSEFH-

33



34

FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

Directors” Report

R

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Group established its Remuneration Committee in March
2005. The Committee currently comprises three members, all
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, Mr. Leung Hok Lim and Mr. Cheung Wah
Fung, Christopher. Mr. Lam Kwong Siu is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee adopted
the term of reference in accordance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices issued by the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee met once during the year as to review
the emolument policy and the benefits of the Executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the General Manager of the Group about their proposals relating
to remuneration package and other human resources issues of the
Directors and senior management of the Group. The emoluments
of Directors are based on each Director’s skil, knowledge and
involvement in the Group's affairs, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as of the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

Messr. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng were appointed as the
auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010
and have audited the accompanying financial statements. A
resolution will be submitted by the Board of Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
Messr. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng as the Company’s auditors for
the year ending 31 December 2011.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2011
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE
ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognized standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of
the top priorities of the Company. The Board of Directors (the
“Board”) believes that good corporate governance is one of the
areas that lead to the success of the Company and in balancing
the interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the
Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Directors consider that throughout the year ended 31
December 2010, the Company has complied with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code on Corporate
Governance”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The Company had received a verbal confirmation
of independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND
BOARD PRACTICES

The Board is principally responsible for the management and
operations of the Group. The Board also reviews the overall
strategic development and monitors the financial performance
of the Group. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities in
reviewing the reports of the Group for the year covered by this
annual report.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, three of
which are Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. One of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Board composition review will be made regularly to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and expertise appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group. In accordance with
article 101 of the Company’s Articles of Association, one third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third shall retire
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible for
re-election.
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CHAIRMAN'’S ROLE AND
RESPONSIBILITY

The Chairman of the Board (“‘Chairman”) and the Group General
Manager are separate individuals, to maintain segregation of
duties between the management of the Board and the day-
to-day management of the Group’s business. One important
role of the Chairman is to provide leadership for the Board.
The Chairman has to ensure that the Board works effectively,
discharges responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. All Directors are
consulted about matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda.
The Chairman has delegated to the Company Secretary the
responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting.

The Group supports the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Group General
Manager has been delegated such authority. The Board always
acts in the best interests of the Group, and all Directors have made
full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board. Meeting
between the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) without the presence of
Executive Directors has been scheduled as at least once a year.

A package of orientation materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules, related
ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong Kong is
provided to each newly appointed Director. Orientation meeting for
briefing on business and operations of the Group will be held with
the Directors concerned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets regularly. For the year ended 31 December
2010, it held four meetings. Regular Board meetings of the
year are scheduled in advance. All notices of the meeting of the
Board will be made to various directors at least 14 days prior
to the meeting, the Company Secretary will assist the Chairman
in preparing the memorandum of the meeting as to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. Board papers are circulated
not less than three days before the Board meetings, to enable
the Directors to make informed decisions on matters to be
raised at the Board meetings and to offer them sufficient time to
review the documents. The Company Secretary and the Qualified
Accountant normally attend all regular Board meetings, to advise
on corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting and
financial matters when necessary, as to ensure the compliance
and maintenance of sound corporate governance practice. The
Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep record of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships) among members of the
Board. All of them are free to exercise their independent judgment.
The Company has received annual written confirmations from
all independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence during the year pursuant to the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The directors have overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s system of internal control.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the directors periodically
reviewed its internal control system to ensure its effectiveness
and adequacy, which embraced financial, operational and risk
management control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board met four times
and the Directors’ attendance at the Board Meeting is as follows:

R-ZE-ZF+_HA=+—BHFE E=F
SRTMASH EFHFEERNT

Director Attendance
= HE R
Chairman FE

WANG Xiaowu N 3
Executive Directors HITEE

WANG Ruilian FIn iR 4
LIU Xiaoting 2T 3
Non-executive Directors FEHITEE

FENG Qiang 5 58 4
YE Tao = 0
Independent Non-executive Directors BB ITEE

LAM Kwong Siu MEJK 3
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher REE IR 2
LEUNG Hok Lim P35S 4

Records of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary,
and submitted to each Director for filing and made available to
them for their inspection.

Insurance policy has been arranged to safeguard the interests of
the Directors in case of legal proceedings.

Non-executive directors

Mr. Ye Tao and Mr. Feng Qiang were appointed as Non-
executive Directors on 24 September 2004 and 27 January
2005 respectively and without a specific term, but are subject to
retirement by rotation at the Annual General Meeting in compliance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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CONFIRMATION OF
INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each Independent Non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.18 of the Listing Rules, and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Mr. Leung Hok Lim has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company with tenure of two years and was
reappointed at most two times with tenure of two years and
expired on 23 September 2010 and was reappointed on 24
September 2010 with tenure of two years, expiring on 23
September 2012. Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung
have been Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
with tenure of two years and was reappointed at most two times
with tenure of two years and expired on 10 December 2009 and
were reappointed on 11 December 2009 with tenure of two years,
expiring on 10 December 2011. However, their tenure is subject to
retirement by rotation at the Annual General Meeting in compliance
with the Articles of Association of the Company and the Code on
Corporate Governance, under which they have to retire by rotation
and make themselves eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair
and reasonable, ensured all applicable accounting standards are
followed and prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis. The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the
Group keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and which
enable the preparation of financial statements in accordance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
accounting standards.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, the
Model Code, as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Specific enquiry has been made with all
Directors and the Directors have complied with the requirements
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2010.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Group was established in 1999.
Currently, it comprises three members, all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim
who possesses professional accounting qualification, Mr. Lam
Kwong Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher. Mr. Leung
Hok Lim is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee adopted the term of reference in accordance with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices issued by the Stock
Exchange. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
the review and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. Two meetings have been held by
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the Audit Committee during the year. Each Committee meeting IR P RIERER

was provided with necessary financial information of the Group for

consideration, review and assessment of major issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the members of the RZE—ZEF+_A=+—HFE &%

Audit Committee met twice and their attendance is as follows: ZESRTMAEE KEHFEBRET
Attendance

Name of member RERE IR 2K

LEUNG Hok Lim (Chairman) RER(LE) 2

LAM Kwong Siu WEIK 2

CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher IREE I 0

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim and final financial EZZEgEHrEEEEZ TE

results for the year 2010. The Audit Committee considers the
financial statement to be complied with the appropriate financial
standards and the law regulations and with enough disclosure has
been made.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending
candidates to fill vacancies in the Board based on their
qualifications, abilities and potential contribution to our Company
and to ensure fair and transparent procedures for the appointment,
re-election and removal of directors to the Board. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on our
Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee was formed by the Group in March
2005. The Committee currently comprises three members, all
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher, Mr. Leung Hok Lim and Mr. Lam
Kwong Siu, whereas Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher was
nominated as the Chairman of the committee.

BEZERERAT
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During the year ended 31 December 2010, the members of the RIZB-ZF+_A=+—RFE EEZ%
Nomination Committee met once and resolved to propose the BgRT—AH AZBAA_ZT—F
reappointment of our one Independent Non-executive Directors FANAZFTMNAEZZE——FNA=+=
for a term of two year from 24 September 2010 to 23 September AEEREARNG (I BLIFENTEER
2012 and submitted the same to the Board for approval. Their EEE THWMT TRREETSHE K
attendance is as follows: BHEBLNAT:

Attendance
Name of member REEHE R #
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher (Chairman) %E% (F5) 1
LEUNG Hok Lim R 25 1
LAM Kwong Siu MEJK 1

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Group established its Remuneration Committee in March
2005. The Committee currently comprises three members, all
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, Mr. Leung Hok Lim and Mr. Cheung Wah
Fung, Christopher. Mr. Lam Kwong Siu is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee adopted
the term of reference in accordance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices issued by the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee met once during the year as to review
the emolument policy and the benefits of the Executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the General Manager of the Group about their proposals relating
to remuneration package and other human resources issues of the
Directors and senior management of the Group. The emoluments
of Directors are based on each Director’s skil, knowledge and
involvement in the Group's affairs, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the members of the

Remuneration Committee met once and their attendance is as
follows:

Name of member

FHZE AN AKREESRSREEA
BrHMEzREkEMANEREAREERA
SEERER/HBEE-EETHEREME
AEFZ e ABKFE RN EEER
ZERARE Y2RAKEZXEEATN
AR~ RS K F R IGREMETE

RZE—ZEF+_A=+—RHFE FM
ZEGRTRgE KEHFEBRET:
Attendance

R B

LAM Kwong Siu (Chairman)

LEUNG Hok Lim Rk
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher MREIK
EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Messr.
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng regarding their independence and
objectivity and had a meeting with HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng,
the external auditors of the Company, to discuss the scope of their
audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and retention of the external auditors.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company paid
Messr. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$460,000 as audit fees (2009: HK$460,000).

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 45 to 46
of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s management believes that risk management is an
essential component of the Group’s administrative structure. The
management assists the Board in evaluating material risk exposure
existing in the Group’s business, including investment risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk etc, and participates in designing
and formulating appropriate risk management and internal control
measures, and to ensure its implementation in daily operational
management.

The management considers that the investment risk management
measures provide guarantee to the Group through its way of
seeking new development opportunities, as to secure reasonable
return in every investment, to reduce investment risks and to avoid
possible loss attributable to investments.

The Group’s risk management towards liquidity aims to ensure
that under all circumstances there exists sufficient capital to
fulfill repayment obligations of all debts due, to maintain good
creditworthiness, to finance reasonable investment opportunities
and to fuel business development. The Group’s accounting
department is responsible for daily financial activities and monitors
liquidity position from time to time to cope with business operation
of the Company.

CORPORATE CORRESPONDENCE

The Company commits to report to the shareholders of the
Company the Group’s corporate information in a timely and
punctual way through notifying or mailing to all shareholders via
press release, Interim Report and Annual Report. The circular of
the Annual General Meeting will be distributed to all shareholders
of the Company at least 21 days prior to the meeting, which
set out the requirements and the procedure of the vote and the
relevant details of other proposed resolutions. The printed copies
of the Group’s Annual Report and Interim Report have been
dispatched to all the shareholders.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is provided.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully compliant
with disclosure obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws and regulations, and that all shareholders
and potential investors have an equal opportunity to receive and
obtain externally available information that is released by the
Group.
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CORPORATE MONITOR

The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s overall
corporate reporting process and control system, while the
corporate reporting standard is handled by the accounting
department, which makes regular review of resources allocation
and financial reporting system properly. Compliance with Code
on Corporate Governance Practices, the Listing Rules, SFO and
other applicable laws and regulations are handled by the Company
Secretary. The Company’s management meets with the Executive
Directors regularly to review and brief the reporting system, and the
Audit Committee annually to review and brief the reporting system.

A package of detailed materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of the Directors of the Company is provided to each
newly appointed Director of the Company, in which it is especially
specified the applicable rules and regulations (including the Listing
Rules) that the first time appointed Directors of the Company shall
notice and understand.

In respect of the securities transactions made by Directors and
relevant employee, the Company has adopted Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, the Model Code, as its own of conduct regarding
the standard for securities transactions. Printed copies of the
Model Code have been distributed to each Director and relevant
employee of the Group as stipulated therein. All the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the standards set out
therein.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information about the Group are also subject to
compliance with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2011
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Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujian
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 138, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Bk 22 T W A A

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-ZT-—ZF+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

Notes 2010 2009
B 5 —E-FF —EENF
Revenue Uy &= 5 16,357,222 17,776,714
Other income H g A 7 4,179,078 5,575,800
Other gains and losses HihmRkEE 8 3,515,075 3,885,848
Employee benefits expense BIERNZEH 10 (6,447,114) (6,966,881)
Depreciation e 15 (3,198,191) (3,325,820)
Amortisation of prepaid FEAEEREE®E
lease payment 16 (1,874,007) (2,009,302)
Share of profit of an associate FE{REEE QAT ZER 900,072 780,443
Other operating expenses HtR&EER (10,269,497) (11,071,490)
Profit before tax BR B A R 3,162,638 4,645,312
Income tax expense FERExX 9 (536,121) (420,471)
Profit for the year REEER 10 2,626,517 4,224,841
Other comprehensive income Hi 2wk
Exchange differences on MEBINEBEE
translating foreign operations ZIENRERR 244,114 (3,908)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEZEKE
for the year 244,114 (3,908)
Total comprehensive income REEEEWZHE
for the year 2,870,631 4,220,933
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (HK cents per share) HAR (SRBWL) 13 0.49 0.79
Diluted (HK cents per share) s (ZREWL) 13 0.49 0.79
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A WBIR R

At 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)

R-EBE—FTFE+=-A=+—08 (LUWETIT)

Notes 2010 2009
B 5 —E-EF —ETNF
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 15 40,096,323 42,088,434
Prepaid lease payment A HEERE 16 27,953,930 29,827,937
Investment properties EYE 17 28,675,000 25,560,000
Interest in an associate Bt N mlfE RS 19 10,038,350 8,791,378
106,763,603 106,267,749
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 143,036 100,813
Trade and other receivables B 5 I E A e U BR X 21 3,002,037 2,573,664
Time deposits FE TR 22 - 18,584,280
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRKES 22 37,914,888 17,247,800
41,059,961 38,506,557
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 NH M ER IR 23 3,450,697 4,282,181
Net current assets RBEEFE 37,609,264 34,224,376
Total assets less current liabilities A EERABH ARG 144,372,867 140,492,125
Capital and reserves BAR #E
Equity attributable to owners of the A FBliE A A EMGEZS
Company
Share capital % A< 25 66,780,000 66,597,500
Reserves 1 62,933,868 59,977,097
Total equity RARERS B 129,713,868 126,574,597
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBERE 24 8,764,649 8,246,665
Trade and other payables g5 & H R 23 5,894,350 5,670,863
14,658,999 13,917,528
144,372,867 140,492,125

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 138 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
24 March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

SENE
Wang Xiaowu
FFE

Director

EFEgN_T——F=-A-t+OBECHHE

WHRETERREZFAMBRERTFIT
B X 1388 :

ImM

Wang Ruilian
EFE

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ok 1 MO 2 58 W)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)

HE_Z-—ZF+A=+—BFE (CABETIIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRAREAEE

Share-based

Share Share Translation compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
DY E]
XERH
R & 495 8 BERE Heftk 2 FR EH
(Note 25) (Note 26) (Note 26)
(i3525) (it 3526) (Bi5E26)
At 1 January 2009 R=ZTNE—A-A 66,597,500 576,304,933 (7,518,189 268,640 (513,299,220 122,353,664
Profit for the year KEERF - - - - 4,224,841 4,004,841
Other comprehensive income KEEHMZERE
for the year - - (3,908) - - (3,908)
Total comprehensive income KEE2ENELE
for the year - - (3,908) - 4,224,841 4,220,933
At 31 December 2009 RZEEAE+ZA=1—-H 66,597,500 576,304,933 (7,522,097) 268,640 (509,074,379) 126,574,597
Profit for the year KEEREF - - - - 2,626,517 2,626,517
Other comprehensive income AEEENZERE
for the year - - 244114 - - 244114
Total comprehensive income KEE2ENGLE
for the year - - 244,114 - 2,626,517 2,870,631
Issue of ordinary shares under REEESERETE
employee share option plan BITERK 182,500 354,780 - (268,640) - 268,640
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-FF+ZF=+-H 66,780,000 576,659,713 (7,277,983) - (506,447,862) 129,713,868
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-ZT-—ZF+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

2010 2009
—E—EF —ETNF
Cash flows from operating REEBZRERE
activities
Profit for the year NE R A 2,626,517 4,224,841
Adjustments for: FEIAE -
Income tax expense P8’ 2 536,121 420,471
Bank interest income RITHFE WA (362,639) (244,784)
Share of profit of an associate FEAG B & N F) 2t A (900,072) (780,443)
Amortisation of prepaid lease FE T E IR
payment 1,874,007 2,009,302
Depreciation of property, WME BMEREZHEZITE
plant and equipment 3,198,191 3,325,820
Gain arising on change in fair value KREMERNTE
of investment properties I = (3,115,000) (7,993,544)
Gain on disposal of HEREYE K=
investment property = (1,411,049)
Loss on disposal and write-off of e RS E - BB &
property, plant and equipment B2 EIEER 4,787 309,844
Impairment loss recognised TERHEERIE 2 RE
on prepaid lease payment B8 FE R - 2,153,459
Impairment loss recognised W WERZE2RE
on property, plant and equipment Esia R - 3,034,190
Impairment loss recognised FEUE SR 2 REBEER
on trade receivables 64,154 12
Impairment loss recognised H bR 2 BB
on other receivables BB R 68,994 68,788
Waiver of other payable Hih R RRZ % (1,078,405) (2,152,804)
Operating cash flows before LEASEHI KERS
movements in working capital 2,916,655 2,964,103
(Increase)/decrease in inventories Fa Em, md (42,223) 4,704
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 I H e YR 5K
other receivables () (579,659) 521,463
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 Ik H A FE A BRFE a0 246,921 396,469
Cash generated from operations WEEKESRA 2,541,694 3,886,739
Interest received 2R & 362,639 244,784
Net cash generated by REXBESRANFHE
operating activities 2,904,333 4,131,523
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
HEBenaE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-ZT-ZF+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIR)

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Cash flows from investing activities REXBHELHRE
Purchase of property, EEVE BENMZHE
plant and equipment (1,082,487) (932,628)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits B (M) E HTF K 18,584,280 (18,584,280)
Proceeds from disposal of REHEREYER 2 AEHIE
investment property - 2,754,593
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREXHKBHE
investing activities RN ()38 17,501,793 (16,762,315)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEB 2R ESRE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares & (& %77 & i@ % 268,640 -
Net cash generated from financing BEBHACBSHRAFEHE
activities 268,640 -
Net increase/(decrease) in ReRESEE
cash and cash equivalents #m, GRd) REE 20,674,766 (12,630,792)
Cash and cash equivalents FENzBEERREEE
at the beginning of the year 17,247,800 29,899,372
Effects of foreign exchange EXRFFHTE
rate changes (7,678) (20,780)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHECESRBESEENRT
end of the year, representing HHEE2
bank balances and cash 37,914,888 17,247,800
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At 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
RZZF—ZFF+=-A=+—8 (LAUEBTIIR)

Notes 2010 2009
B & —E-EF —ETRF
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- FE k&G 15 146,953 61,337
Investment properties KEYE 17 28,675,000 25,560,000
Interests in subsidiaries BB A B 18 765,300 6,309,307
29,587,253 31,930,644
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E e UL ER 3R 21 1,040,651 1,438,788
Time deposits TE 8317 3k 22 - 18,584,280
Bank balances and cash IRITHESBR AR 22 37,267,428 16,050,777
38,308,079 36,073,845
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 85 N H M ER IR 23 967,586 610,218
Net current assets RBEEFE 37,340,493 35,463,627
Total assets less current
liabilities HWEERARBARG 66,927,746 67,394,271
Capital and reserves BAR FE
Equity attributable to ZAN/NEIESZSDN
owners of the Company JEAE T 2R
Share capital &% 2 25 66,780,000 66,597,500
Reserves & 26 (1,689,129) (516,278)
Total equity BRAREEEE 65,090,871 66,081,222
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBERE 24 1,836,875 1,313,049
66,927,746 67,394,271
ENE EEHR
Wang Xiaowu Wang Ruilian
BZE EZE
Director Director



Fujian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company
is HC Technology Capital Company Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its ultimate
holding company is BEEREZ (£E)ER A A, a
state-owned corporation in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is Unit 1216,
12/F., China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are investment
holding, property investment in Hong Kong and hotel
operations in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
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1. GENERAL
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MM ERE R EBLEMI ARED
RTmEBEP—BA AT ARZEZE_EHR
EERLBEBAREIEI216F °

HAVBBRURRBZYEER
ABILES

ARRAFREMBAR (R TARE
) F2RERERR URNEBZ
WMERE AL B 28 R 5

53



94

FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 5 Y 05 % Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-ZT-ZFE+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The following new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) have been
applied by the Group in these consolidated financial
statements. The application of these new and revised
Standards and Interpretations has not had any material
impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior
years but may affect the accounting for future transactions
or arrangements.

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
HKAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged ltems

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time
Adopters

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment
Transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as
part of Improvements
to HKFRSs 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
2009
HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash

Assets to Owner

HK - Int 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Team
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards and Interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010 except
for the amendments to
HKFRS 3 (as revised in
2008), HKFRS 7, HKAS 1
and HKAS 287

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First- time
Adopters?

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters?

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets?

HKAS 24 (as revised in Related Party Disclosures?
2009)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights

Issues”
HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendments) Funding Requirement?
HK (IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments?
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010 or 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
20711.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
20711.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

o Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

o In relation to financial liabilities, the significant
change relates to financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the presentation of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
financial year ending 31 December 2013 and that the
application of the new Standard may have a significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Groups’
financial assets. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.

2.

WM
=it
(%)

) B AT
B 5 ¢ o e

PEMBENS ZENZE
REFHNEBEERERF
Bt \BmzerRAE--F5l
EREE B REERF
S BIEE AR AFER AR
meEBMBEMS ZAEE
ERREHEEZEBRAGER
FEEZHSEREMES KA
2 BIFEEMESRAZ
JZaBZEERRESHTE
CEYEHEREG L 25
-2RMABEERRENLZ
NP EEHERTEEFH IR
=R WA REBEBEEE
A 58395 - 15 E MR A FER
ABmzeRABZATFEE
PeHeBERBERRNZY-

BEAMBHRELERFIFN T —=
F—HA—HskzEMBZFEHMH
A WAl $R AT FEF ©

EEEPARESHE T —=F—
A—BRBzcEERHEZEA T
BREBB BB REERIFNR
ERZAIEEA e AEES
MEEZERTHEELEAFE T
B EERFAERN A BARE
MEEELEE A

97



FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 3 YU 205 3 B i

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-ZT-—ZF+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

58

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 titled Disclosures -
Transfers of Financial Assets increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of
financial assets. These amendments are intended to
provide greater transparency around risk exposures when
a financial asset is transferred but the transferor retains
some level of continuing exposure in the asset. The
amendments also require disclosures where transfers of
financial assets are not evenly distributed throughout the
period.

The directors do not anticipate that these amendments
to HKFRS 7 will have a significant effect on the Group’s
disclosures regarding transfers of trade receivables
previously affected. However, if the Group enters into
other types of transfers of financial assets in the future,
disclosures regarding those transfers may be affected.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in 2009)
modifies the definition of a related party and simplifies
disclosures for government-related entities.

The disclosure exemptions introduced in HKAS 24 (as
revised in 2009) do not affect the Group because the
Group is not a government-related entity.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. JE

REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 32 titled Classification of
Rights Issues address the classification of certain rights
issues denominated in a foreign currency as either an
equity instrument or as a financial liability. To date, the
Group has not entered into any arrangements that would
fall within the scope of the amendments. However, if
the Group does enter into any rights issues within the
scope of the amendments in future accounting periods,
the amendments to HKAS 32 will have an impact on the
classification of those rights issues.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 provides guidance regarding the
accounting for the extinguishment of a financial liability by
the issue of equity instruments. To date, the Group has
not entered into transactions of this nature. However, if
the Group does enter into any such transactions in the
future, HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 will affect the required accounting.
In particular, under HK(IFRIC)-Int 19, equity instruments
issued under such arrangements will be measured at their
fair value, and any difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the fair value of
equity instruments issued will be recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. BEEHEBOR (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly
and indirectly, controls the composition of the board of
directors, controls more than half of the voting power
or holds more than half of the issued share capital.
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any identified impairment losses. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment as a single asset.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment in the associate. Any reversal
of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

From 1 January 2010 onwards, upon disposal of an
associate that results in the Group losing significant
influence over that associate, any retained investment
is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as
a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the previous carrying amount of the
associate attributable to the retained interest and its
fair value is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate is recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the course of
the ordinary activities, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when
services are provided.

Income from granting the management right of the
Group’s hotel is recognised in accordance with the terms
of the contract.

Management fee income is recognised on quarterly basis
for the fixed portion and yearly basis for floating portion
over the terms of contract.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for
as property, plant and equipment.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the exchange rates prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the consolidated financial
statements and will be reclassified from equity to profit
or loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees in an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
compensation reserve). At the end of the reporting period,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based compensation reserve.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees in an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction
(Continued)

For share options that are vested immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and an associate, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current or deferred tax for the year is recognised in
profit or loss, except when they relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including hotel property
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
or fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Hotel Property held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Freehold land is stated at revalued amount, being the
fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
impairment losses, if any. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do
not differ materially from those that would be determined
using fair values at the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such
land and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive
income, and accumulated under the heading of properties
revaluation reserve except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount
arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in
the properties revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained earnings.

Hotel property is interests in buildings and their integral
fixed plant which are collectively used in the operations
of the hotel, and are stated at cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses. The related repairs
and maintenance attributable to hotel property are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period which they are incurred. The costs of
significant improvements are capitalised.

Depreciation of the hotel property is calculated on the
straight-line basis to write-off the cost of the hotel
property over the remaining lease terms.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
recognised so as to write-off the cost over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the reducing balance method at a
principal annual rate of 20%.

3.

F R BOR (41)

(%)

AE G L MBFME L Z B
AREE2ENRE  MRBERYEE
fREE-RIFEREERNBTECRE
fhE A M AR & e R AR - RIBR
B 2 Efh BBREBIERA - TR
BUAEZ RETEA - REG DI RIE

STHEBFERIZBENBE
EffREECEESLHMEAS (1
B)R ZRAGAKAERP K
ERMERBRLE ERXMEER
Al D ECEf AR EARE
it e

BIEMEDERN TR ELEH
JE B E R 2 BB E AR &ﬁ$ﬁ
kR REHTE R RFHREERSI
WA - EE%%@%1%&%WMA
EEREF AR EERER -HE
BEEMNAEHWBIEER -

BEMETDNBREAERE R
BIEMEZ AR AR GEE FH
At B -

FENEMYE BELRREBHREE
BOE - IR TE AN S B A A A HI
HRAE AEBFR20%H -

(4!



FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak 3 YU 205 A B i

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-ZT-—ZFE+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. BEEHEBOR (4)

72

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
and/ or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
are measured initially at cost including transaction costs
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determinated at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, time deposits and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instrument issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including trade and other

payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Other financial liabilities (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset or retains a residual
interest that does not result in the retention of substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group
retains control), the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair value of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on
a method of valuation which involves certain estimates.
In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions and underlying assumptions adopted
for capitalisation of the income derived from the existing
tenancies with due provision for the reversionary income
potential of the property interests.

Estimated impairment of assets

The Group assesses annually whether assets have any
indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. Where an indication of impairment
is noted, the recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment will be estimated based on value-in-
use calculations or scrap value. These calculations and
valuations require the use of judgement and estimates on
future operating cash flows and discount rates adopted
and estimated market value of the scraps.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar natures and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables

The policy for doubtful receivables of the Group is based
on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and aging
analysis of the trade and other receivables and on the
management’s judgement. Considerable judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including creditworthiness, the past collection
history of each debtor and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate.
If the financial conditions of the Group’s debtors were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their abilities to
make payments, additional impairment losses of trade and
other receivables may be required.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4.

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and other jurisdictions. Judgment is required in certain
provision for income taxes for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential
tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amount that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relate
to tax losses, depends on management’s expectation of
future taxable profits that will be available against which
tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their utilisation
may be different.
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5.

REVENUE 5. Wtk
2010 2009
—2-%% —TENEF
Gross rental income from letting of AT E Y
investment properties He W ABsE 1,272,720 1,367,820
Revenue from hotel operations B 5 2 W e 15,084,502 16,408,894
16,357,222 17,776,714
SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EEFR

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of services
provided.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

the rental of investment
properties

Property investment -

Hotel operations - the operation of hotel
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

6.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

6. 2 BEHR (%)

g L e ES

ARE@MZAl RHOBE D 2 Bz M

results by reportable segments: EEOTWT
Property investment Hotel operations Consolidated
MERE BIEER e
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZF% —ZENE “E-ZF% —ZENE “E-%F% —ZENE
REVENUE E:
Revenue from external customers ~ SNFE P W& 1,272,720 1,367,820 15,084,502 16,408,894 16,357,222 17,776,714
RESULT ES
Segment result before RitEf e BEE
other gains 753,354 1,045,150 3,728,362 3,546,202 4,481,716 4,591,352
Gain arising on change BEMENTFEKE
in fair value of
investment properties 3,115,000 7,993,544 - - 3,115,000 7,993,544
Gain on disposal of investment HEREME Y E
property = 1,411,049 = - = 1,411,049
Impairment loss on property, ME- BERIEREZ
plant and equipment ERRER - - - (3,034,190) - (3,034,190)
Impairment loss on prepaid Hfﬁg RIBR 2 BB
lease payment R - - - (2,153,459) - (2,1583,459)
Segment result SHEEE 3,868,354 10,449,743 3,728,362 (1641447) 17,596,716 8,808,296
Unallocated income RES WA 362,639 296,336
Central administration costs FRITBAA (5,696,789) (5,239,763)
Share of profit of an associate BB E AR 28 900,072 780,443
Profit before tax BRAEAT & A 3,162,638 4,645,312
Income tax expense FERAS (536,121) (420,471)
Profitfor the year AF R 2626517 4,224,841

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in the current year (2009: nil).

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by
each segment without allocation of bank interest income
and other unallocated income, central administration
costs including directors’ remuneration, share of profit
of an associate and income tax expense. This is the
measurement reported to the chief operating decision
marker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

X S EK IR ANBE
B2 sk - A L D BRI M E A
SETAEE) -

QISR - e e = EsacTsipun
ZAGEBEGETHRAAR - 2 Bn s

B BRREm A - M D BLERTT

MBWARHEERESWA  PRIT

BRABREEHNE  EHBE QR
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6.

M|
SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. SMEFR (%)
Segment assets and liabilities nrEE A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and NEFEKRHEROHEZ S Z2EER
liabilities by reportable segments: BESHWMT:
Property investment Hotel operations Consolidated
WERE BEEYR e
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—Z-%F “ETNF —Z-%F —ZTNE —Z-%F —ZTNE
ASSETS BE
Segment assets SPEE 67,130,032 61,695,182 70,652,604 74,284 117 137,782,636 135,979,299
Interest in an associate BERNAER 10,038,350 8,791,378
Unallocated corporate assets RESRREE 2,578 3,629
Consolidated total assets RABEE 147,823,564 144,774,306
LIABILITIES &%
Segment labilities SHEE (967,587) (610,218)  (8,362,460)  (9,336,826)  (9,330,047)  (9,947,044)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AEHDFBE (8,779,649) (8,252,665)
Consolidated total liabilities BABERE (18,109,696)  (18,199,709)
Other segment information HtpEER
Capital additions BEAREM 125,440 20,000 957,047 912,628 1,082,487 932,628
Depreciation of property, nE -BERSEINE
plant and equipment 39,824 20,476 3,158,367 3,303,344 3,198,191 3,325,820
Amortisation of prepaid lease BREEREEE
payment - - 1,874,007 2,009,302 1,874,007 2,009,302
Gain arising on change in fair value & & % A FEYS
of investment properties (3,115,000) (7,993,544) - - (3,115,000) (7,993,544)
Gain on disposal of investment HERAMENS
property - (1,411,049) - - - (1,411,049)
Impairment loss on prepaid BREERERESE
lease payment R - - - 2,153,459 - 2,153,459
Loss on disposal and write-off of & RHMEME  BER
property, plant and equipment REZEBBERR - 30,236 4,787 279,608 4,787 309,844
Impairment loss on trade YRR AEERER
receivables - - 64,154 12 64,154 12
Impairment loss on other HEibERERERZAE
receivables EEER - - 68,994 68,788 68,994 68,788
Impairment loss on property, nE - BEREEZR
plant and equipment BEEER - - - 3,034,190 - 3,034,190
Waiver of other payable HENER 2SS - - (1,078,405) (2,152,804) (1,078,405) (2,152,804)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. BEF (%)

(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities
(Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
certain bank balances and interest in an associate.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than certain balances of current liabilities and deferred tax
liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas
- the People’s Republic of China (excluding Hong Kong)
(the “PRC”) and Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
location are detailed below:

oy JU E B B ()

Ty B ¥e /Y WA BL R S WU 2 B O
Al

BRRLIRITEBRRBLEABIERZ
SNVFTEBEEBVEDEEAHRY

B

BRREBHEABLEHRLETCHEAR
BN FBEREBHC D EER HHRY

"

b e 5 B

AEBZEBRENMELIEDLR
BE—-E(FERI) (THE])
KEB -

AEEREINDES 2 Weas kA M
O B5 2 IR B A A AR
0

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RENBEE2WH ERBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E2-%F —EENF —E-2F ZZTNE
PRC H 15,084,502 16,408,894 77,941,650 80,646,412
Hong Kong BB 1,272,720 1,367,820 28,821,953 25,621,337
16,357,222 17,776,714 106,763,603 106,267,749

No external customers of the Group contributed over 10%
of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2010 and 2009.

AEER_Z-—ZFR_FTTNF
BALBIBEFAEERTRES

10% 2 B Wz -
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ZE+-A=+—BFE GAETIIR)

7. OTHER INCOME

2010 2009
—_E-FF —EENF
Income from granting the management — #A % EEJEE B EX T
right of the Group’s hotel ERRIBRES WA
(notes (i), (ii) and (i) PR3 () (i) B (i) ) 2,698,392 3,097,965
Bank interest income R1TF B WA 362,639 244,784
Waiver of other payable HEMENER R 1,078,405 2,152,804
Others H Aty 39,642 80,247
4,179,078 5,575,800

Notes:

(0

(i)

(i)

On 4 March 2008, Yan Hei Limited (“Yan Hei”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and Xiamen South East
Asia Company Limited (“Xiamen Plaza”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Yan Hei Limited, entered into an agreement with
Fujian Sunshine Group Limited (“Sunshine Group”) and &Z 9
BEEH EE 12 A R A 7] (Xiamen Friendship International Co.,
Ltd) (“Friendship International”). Pursuant to the agreement,
Sunshine Group agreed to transfer the management right of
Xiamen South East Asia Hotel (the “Hotel”), a hotel owned by
Xiamen Plaza to Friendship International.

On 4 March 2008, Xiamen Plaza entered into a management
contract (“Management Contract”) with Friendship
International in relation to the appointment of Friendship
International to manage the daily operation of the Hotel
for a period of five years. Friendship International has paid
RMBS5 million as security deposit to Xiamen Plaza, which is
refundable upon expiry of the Management Contract.

The Hotel remains the property of the Group at all time under
the Management Contract and there will not be a transfer
of ownership of the Hotel at or after the completion of the
Management Contract. Xiamen Plaza is entitled to receive
income from Friendship International which is calculated in
accordance with the terms of the Management Contract.

i3 :

(i

(i)

R-EENF=ZAWNBARREZE
MWEARCEAERAR (MEE])
MEBERARZEMBARE
FIRmEERBEEERAR([HE])
HiERB i EEERAR (B
@) KEMFEBEEERRA
7 ([30EE ) RIS — I8 HE - Ut
BREEAEEERRERE ZE
FIRmEAREE (DEEDEBE
TRHET -

R-ZZENF=ZAWA  RBEH
BRI EREREAEERLAEE
ZBEHEEEERARAYT
F-HEDAARAXNARE
5,000,0007C E R R & & &+ I A
REBRERIHRERD -

RBFBEEER BESRFEA/AE
B HEXETELEEESR
TRHRZREE - CREARARE
WE—FRERARGHFEZE
o
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. b Wi % B N5 1
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZEENF
Gain arising on change in fair value of wEMEANTFEKE
investment properties 3,115,000 7,993,544
Impairment loss recognised on property, #1% « E K& & 2 BE
plant and equipment BIEER = (3,034,190)
Impairment loss recognised on prepaid B4 # &3 E 2 #E
lease payment E1EER - (2,153,459)
Impairment loss recognised on trade FE W BR R 2 R B S 1R TR
receivables (64,154) (12)
Impairment loss recognised on other E b fE AR R 2 R E
receivables BB R (68,994) (68,788)
Loss on disposal and write-off of e RMEmE - BE &
property, plant and equipment B SEi=] (4,787) (309,844)
Net foreign exchange gains FOMNE I = 538,010 47,548
Gain on disposal of investment property & 1% & ¥) 2 Uk 55 - 1,411,049
3,515,075 3,885,848
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. PrfBtB X

2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTENF
Current tax: BVHATS 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RE RIS 18,137 -
Deferred tax: EERIA :
Current year KEE (80,550) (362,148)
Attributable to a change in tax rate JE i 7 R 2 598,534 782,619
517,984 420,471
536,121 420,471

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements as the Company
had agreed losses brought forward to set off against the
assessable profits and its Hong Kong subsidiaries did not
have any assessable profits for the year (2009: Nil).

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated
at 22% (2009: 20%) on the assessable profit of the
Group’s PRC subsidiary as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and regulations in the PRC.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the Enterprise Income Tax
Rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiary was increased from
15% to 25% progressively from 1 January 2008 onwards.
The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the
tax rates are expected to apply to the respective periods
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

BEENBRHIEZA L FAGBAER
HEA16.5% (ZEZTNF:16.5%)

-

R AN AR A ER AR BT E R
HH G ERBOEN - kA E BB
R A A ET RS A - B TR
MIEHER AT BN G VAR E
(ZZZNF ]E) -

HEhENE AR EMSHEERE
RIEFR B AR 2 TS HER R R
22% (ZZEZTNF :20% ) METE °

BIEPEAREMBECEMESRE
(THEBE)RBHEBERKE
Bl B =TT NFE— A —BRFREM
BARZFSHBEEHR15%EHIL
NE25% - FELEFRIBLEHDIEFE -
URMBHNEEEEZRRNEH
BEBERNABEINEEANEH
BEo
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. BRI (%)
(CONTINUED)

The tax charge/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to RAAREENFBESLLE  (EKp)Hiz
42

the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of B EFRTE S EENT
comprehensive income as follows:

2010 —E—FF
Hong Kong % PRC % Total %
BB ERi1 FE ERid1 “E ERid1
Profit before tax Bt A& R 1,469,925 1,692,713 3,162,638
Tax at applicable tax rates BERREHERZ 242,537 16.50 372,396 22.00 614,033 19.44
Tax effect of expenses not deductible N AIHIFIBE 2 M7 &
for tax purpose 721,136 49.05 1,775,185 104.87 2,496,321 78.93
Tax effect of income not BERBEAZHBYE
taxable for tax purpose (1,278,462) (86.97) (1,699,292) (100.39) (2,977,754) (94.15)
Effect on opening deferred tax ARREEINEHEY
resulting from an increase ELBBEEZVE
in applicable tax rate - - 598,534 35.36 598,534 18.93
Tax effect of tax losses not AERBBERZ
recognised k32 838,615 57.05 - - 838,615 26.52
Utilisation of tax losses PRERMARERRAL
previously not recognised HIBEE - - (1,034,528) (61.12) (1,034,528) (32.71)
Tax charge at effective FRABBHEIK

tax rate for the year BRHE 523,826 35.64 12,295 0.73 536,121 16.95
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(CONTINUED)

9. Frf3 BB (%)

2009 —EEhF
Hong Kong % PRC % Total %
&k L) F L) BE L)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBLADER/ (BE) 5,355,682 (710,370) 4,645,312
Tax at applicable tax rates RERT R ERK 883,688 16.50 (142,074) 20.00 741,614 15.96
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A1 EE 2
for tax purpose BBye 155,801 2.91 469,800 (66.13) 625,601 13.47
Tax effect of income not BARNEAZ
taxable for tax purpose e (182,739) (3.41) (1,085,113 148.53 (1,237,852) (26.64)
Effect on opening deferred tax BRBEEMERFN
resulting from an increase EERBEEZ RS
in applicable tax rate - - 782,619 (110.17) 782,619 16.85
Tax effect of tax losses AEARBEEZ
not recognised BBy e 456,299 8.52 - - 456,299 9.82
Utilisation of tax losses PRERMALRAL
previously not recognised HEFHE - - (947,810) 133.42 (947,810) (20.40)
Tax charge/(credit) at effective ~ FABKEY,/ (H%)
tax rate for the year REBHE 1,313,049 24.52 (892,578) 125.65 420,471 9.06
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. 7S 45 B &t )

2010 2009
—E—EfF —ETNF
Profit for the year has been arrived  A&FEERFNEHKR,
at after charging/(crediting): (§FA):
Gross rental income from investment HEMERS WAL
properties (1,272,720) (1,367,820)
Less: Direct operating expenses from B AN F IR E W) E IR
investment properties that ZHeSWAmMES
generated rental income BEELERAR
during the year 84,365 122,958
(1,188,355) (1,244,862)
Employee benefits expense (including BTEMNZH
directors’ remunerations): (BIEESEME) -
Salaries and other benefits FHEMEMEF 6,006,721 6,571,749
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRGET B
schemes 440,393 395,132
6,447,114 6,966,881
Depreciation of hotel property BIEMEZITE 2,449,064 2,638,848
Depreciation of other property, HibmzE - BE&
plant and equipment Rz E 749,127 686,972
3,198,191 3,325,820
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment &1~ T2 & 7k 78 # £ 1,874,007 2,009,302
Total depreciation and amortisation 48 T B T 5 5,072,198 5,335,122
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R & 460,000 460,000
Cost of inventories recognised as other FER AR AHM
operating expenses T B A 68,980 1,742,667
Share of tax of an associate FEAR B & A BB IR
(included in share of (BIE G S
profit of an associate) RNAE&E M A) 322,586 270,415
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11. DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight

(2009: eight) directors were as follows:

11. 35 e 4

BNEMAARSN (ZETNF:8
HESEHe@guT:

Contributions

Salaries to retirement
and other benefit
Name of directors Fees benefits schemes Total
FER )

EEME e Hth®F  BANFEEN ok
2010 —2-Ef
Executive directors HITEE
Wang Xiaowu TNE - 650,000 - 650,000
Wang Ruilian IR - 520,000 - 520,000
Liu Xiaoting gNT - 455,000 - 455,000
Non-executive directors FHTES
Feng Qiang Vo - - - -
Ye Tao ¥E - - - -
Independent BUHHTEE

non-executive directors
Lam Kwong Siu MEK 100,000 - - 100,000
Cheung Wah Fung, REE

Christopher 100,000 - - 100,000
Leung Hok Lim RER 100,000 - - 100,000
Total emoluments H s 300,000 1,625,000 - 1,925,000
2009 ZETNE
Executive directors HITEE
Wang Xiaowu pATINES - 650,000 - 650,000
Wang Ruilian Tk - 538,000 - 538,000
Liu Xiaoting 2T - 470,000 - 470,000
Non-executive directors EHTES
Feng Qiang 558 - - - -
Ye Tao - - - - -
Independent BUFNTEE

non-executive directors
Lam Kwong Siu WEK 100,000 - - 100,000
Cheung Wah Fung, REE

Christopher 100,000 - - 100,000
Leung Hok Lim RERE 100,000 - - 100,000
Total emoluments aE e 300,000 1,658,000 - 1,958,000

There were no arrangements under which the directors
of the Company have waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration.

ARAREFABELHRLGEARER
BRAEAI B 2
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12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12. & B 4

EREm&a#HREEY =R (ZFF
NFZR)RER REZM2E
A ZEEZME R - RHRmA

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2009: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosure in note

11 above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2009: ZETNF-MB)ATZFH WA
two) individuals were as follows: e

2010 2009

—E—BF —ZTENEF

Salaries and other benefits FHekEMET 602,950 601,950

Contributions to retirement RREH SR
benefit schemes 21,875 21,875
624,825 623,825

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including the directors of the Company,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2009: Nil).

B < 531,000,000/ 7T 2 A °

RZE—ZFTF+-_A=1+—HEE
B WS RS AN EARS
MASMAKRERE 2 BE1EA
BEEE(ZSTNF &)
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

13. 55 B 2 A

BERERREERNTIRBEATA
NAFTA ARG BURA &

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETRF
Earnings |
Earnings for the purpose of BAFTEAFRRER
basic earnings per share B (RFEARRQF
(profit for the year attributable to owners  #8 A FE15 % F))
of the Company) 2,626,517 4,224,841
Effect of dilutive potential TERETEE B
ordinary shares = -
Earnings for the purpose of diluted BN EGREERTF
earnings per share 2,626,517 4,224,841
Number of shares BEZE
Weighted average number of TR METEEEE
ordinary shares for the purpose of FRAZH
basic earnings per share 533,708,000 532,780,000
Effect of dilutive potential KRARBETZ
ordinary shares: g R
Share options issued by the Company CIEEE: 3 Pl -2 - 365,578 974,871
Weighted average number of ordinary TR INETFEOEEE
shares for the purpose of diluted SRAFES
earnings per share 534,073,578 533,754,871

14. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to the owner of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$1,258,991 (2009: profit of HK$9,892,365).

14. AR 2 v 84 A\ HEAN
e 41

AABEHFAE AE(EE,258,991%5
T (2T N F % 59,892,365
JT) °
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

15. Y1 3& ~ W 55 B o i

Group rE
Plant,
machinery
Hotel Furniture Leasehold and
property and fixtures  improvements equipment Total
BIENE BRREE WELE BE BERRE Fot ]
COST BHRA
At 1 January 2009 —TTNE-A—H 93,000,000 3,538,509 6,223,415 4,434,749 107,196,673
Additions fﬁ - 20,000 - 912,628 932,628
Disposals & (608,538) (39,709) - (203,927) (852,174)
Exchange adjustments EEREE - 11,169 19,427 13,362 43,958
At 31 December 2009 RZZENF
+ZA=+—H 92,391,462 3,529,969 6,242,842 5,156,812 107,321,085
Additions NE - 43,183 101,260 938,044 1,082,487
Disposals & - (830,808) (105,956) (1,757,837) (2,694,601)
Exchange adjustments EEEHE - 137,964 241,852 199,184 579,000
At 31 December 2010 RZZT-ZF
+-A=+-H 92,391,462 2,880,308 6,479,998 4,536,203 106,287,971
DEPRECIATION AND HERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2009 “ZZNF-A—H 48,286,344 3,467,105 3,397,124 4,229,137 59,379,710
Provided for the year $¢F e 2,638,848 27,931 566,494 92,547 3,325,820
Impairment losses REERRER
recognised 2,814,269 3,168 152,716 64,037 3,034,190
Eliminated on disposals o6 IR 3 8 8 (328,930) (39,709) - (173,691) (642,330)
Exchange adjustments ExEE - 10,968 11,213 13,080 35,261
At 31 December 2009 “TTNE
Jrfﬂ_ir = 583,410,531 3,469,463 4,127,547 4,225,110 65,232,651
Provided for the year AEERE 2,449,064 24,075 464,876 260,176 3,198,191
Eliminated on disposals T 9H T B - (828,858) (105,956) (1,755,000) (2,689,814)
Exchange adjustments EEREE - 136,120 152,675 161,825 450,620
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF
+ZA=+—-AH 55,859,595 2,800,800 4,639,142 2,892,111 66,191,648
CARRYING AMOUNTS  ERMEE
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-%%
+=A=t+-H 36,531,867 79,508 1,840,856 1,644,092 40,096,323
At 31 December 2009 RZZETNEF
+-A=+—AH 38,980,931 60,506 2,115,295 931,702 42,088,434
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. Y13 ~ W 55 Mo o i
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) (%)
Company ¥ NN
Furniture Leasehold Office
and fixtures improvements equipment Total
BRREE MEXE BLERE ok
COST BREAK
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEZNF—A—H 9,180 105,956 191,036 306,172
Additions NE 20,000 - - 20,000
Disposals & - - (88,410) (88,410)
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+-_A=1+—H 29,180 105,956 102,626 237,762
Additions RNE 15,480 101,260 8,700 125,440
Disposals & - (105,956) - (105,956)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+-A=+—H 44,660 101,260 111,326 257,246
DEPRECIATION AND FERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF—F—H 8,822 105,956 97,345 212,123
Provided for the year AEEIE 3,738 - 18,738 22 476
Eliminated on disposals 6 B T 85 T 8
and write-off - - (58,174) (58,174)
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNF+-_A=1+—H 12,560 105,956 57,909 176,425
Provided for the year AEEWE 5,130 25,315 9,379 39,824
Eliminated on disposals 6 R 1 5 T i g - (105,956) - (105,956)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZEF+-A=1+—H 17,690 25,315 67,288 110,293
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-ZF+=-A=+-H 26,970 75,945 44,038 146,953
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+-A=+—H 16,620 - 44,717 61,337
The hotel property is situated in the PRC and held under MR ZBEMETIRFA ALY
medium-term lease. FAE o
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EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried
out a review of the recoverable amount of the assets
including property, plant and equipment and leasehold
land used in the Group’s hotel segment. In performing
impairment testing, the directors of the Company reviewed
the carrying amounts of these assets by reference to a
valuation performed by Norton Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. Norton Appraisals Limited is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The recoverable
amount of this cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) is determined
based on a value in use calculation which uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period and a discount rate
of 10.29% per annum. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate,
growth in revenue, direct and other operating costs during
the period. The management estimates discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU.

In the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amount
of the property, plant and equipment is considered to
be less than its carrying amount as at 31 December
2009, and due to strong competition with other hotels
established near the Hotel in Xiamen, an impairment loss
of HK$3,034,190 in respect of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2009. There was no impairment for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ZWE WEIEHBERENLHEE
RIBBHITRENRE  AQAE
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EEZRE BARYE BEEZER
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

16. TH A AL 453k

Group NEE
COST TR A
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 RZEZNF—H—B ZZTZTNF
and 31 December 2010 +-A=t—HBR-_Z—Z4F

+=—RA=+—8H 86,000,000
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT R RE
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEZhF—HA—H 52,009,302
Amortisation for the year REFZ 2 #HE 2,009,302
Impairment loss recognised BEEERER 2,153,459
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNF+_A=+—H 56,172,063
Amortisation for the year REEZ 2 HH 1,874,007
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZFF+_-_A=+—H 58,046,070
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2010 R-EB-ZEF+=ZHA=+—H 27,953,930
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNF+ZA=+—H 29,827,937

Notes:

f et

(i)

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement signed
between the Xiamen Railway Department Company Limited
(“Railway Department”) and Yan Hei, both parties have
agreed to establish a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture
enterprise known as Xiamen Plaza, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company to operate and manage
the Hotel. The land use rights of the Hotel have been
granted to the joint venture partner and Xiamen Plaza is
vested with the land use rights of the Hotel throughout the
operation period of Xiamen Plaza.

The Group’s prepaid lease payment is a leasehold land
situated in the PRC and held under medium-term lease.

(i)

(i)

RBEEMEEFEERR (T
B BARRME AR CIEEE —
REE M2 GR BHRBKL
EERRZEHIEREPIREEAE
EERAR([FEBE]) RAARZ
ME2ENBAR AEEERE
BEPIREREAEE (DBE]) -
BELMEREDRTAEBH
i SROP 45 i A R i 2 8 R A
BRBEME -

IR E 2 AEEEN T EE R
BERPHAENEE -
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes (Continued):

(ii)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out
a review of the recoverable amount of its leasehold land.
The leasehold land is used in the Group’s hotel segment.
In performing impairment testing, the directors of the
Company reviewed the carrying amount of the leasehold
land by reference to a valuation performed by Norton
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group. Norton Appraisals
Limited is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined
based on a value in use calculation which uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period and a discount rate
of 10.29% per annum. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate,
growth in revenue, direct and other operating costs during
the period. The management estimates discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU.

In the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amount
of prepaid lease payment is considered to be less than
its carrying amount as at 31 December 2009, and due
to strong competition with other hotels established near
the Hotel in Xiamen, an impairment loss of HK$2,153,459
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2009.

16. T4 AL K 0H (45)

Bt (&

(ii)

E

K& HER - ANEEE BEDE
Bzt EFIRETH
WEEEZEH - EETRENR
K ARREENENAN LA
EREZFHRERE2E EHERE
FHEAR AR 2 - & B EEE
A BRI B 4398 37 2 5 5F i B A1
EEREMBEEGENEAREESR
BRE-ZAREEEzREES
BURRBEEEEMLEZDSF
NEBHEERER 2B RIAA K
FF10.20%Fr B X 2o AEE
Ho-nAEENIERIXA/MAN
AR AR BEREEEE
RA - BB EhE 2 T RERE R

RS Ez e BNREHERK
BeELBEMZFTRER -

EERA AaNENIEEFTA
RZBZEAF+-_A=+—HZ
AREeELEEERD  KE
EPIHR AT 2 B A B B F R AU
FOAMRBE—ZZAF T A

“t+—AltzHRAEEKER
2,153,459 T B B TE Lt 7R
ERBZRERE-
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. B &P ¢

Group and Company FEBRAEADT
2010 2009
—ZF —EENF
FAIR VALUE AEE
Balance at beginning of year FH4 25,560,000 18,910,000
Disposal k= - (1,343,544)
Net increase in fair value FA AR 3,115,000 7,993,544
Balance at end of year FIRLEH 28,675,000 25,560,000

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2010 and 2009 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out at that date by Norton
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group. Norton Appraisals
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to
the HKIS Valuation Standards, was arrived on the open
market value basis.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

EHERFEBERAFDRER-F
—EF+_A=FT-HRERZ-ZFTA
¢+fﬂf+ AZEEDER $
EETHE - ERERFEERA

Eﬁi$¥%%%ﬂ§%Wg%ﬂ
SEENEARERARE YHEE
BHEERLEOTE AR
ZREMEZ &R - ZEETETE
%W Rh & FTRM e Y X EE
A WIRAFMEAEEETHE

RELLHERAURDBES 2 A%
BRrEMEERDEBAFERER
AtE YD BERARIMEREYE -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. e EW¥ ()
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amount of investment properties shown LI EYEINERTE:
above are situated on:
2010 2009
—E—=F —ETENF
Land and building in Hong Kong: UREE:
Long-term lease REIELD 5,300,000 4,200,000
Medium-term lease HRERRE AT 23,375,000 21,360,000
28,675,000 25,560,000

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. BB 2 i B 25

2010 2009

—E-FF —ZETNF

Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRRG AR 588,543 588,543
Less: Accumulated impairment B BEHRE (2,365) (2,365)
586,178 586,178

Loans to subsidiaries HKTHEBATIZER 114,184,931 119,728,938
Less: Accumulated impairment B BEHRE (114,005,809) (114,005,809)
179,122 5,723,129

765,300 6,309,307

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

FEWH 8 A B IR T KA 2B
RBRERERE-
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Company had
interests in the following subsidiaries:

Proportion of

18. B )& 2 v B2 (%8)

ARAR-F—BFF A=+
ER-FEAFT A=t A
#5782 = BHE A ARSI T

Place of 3
establishment/ nominal value
incorporation of issued share capital/ Nominal value
and principal registered capital of issued share
place of held by the Company capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries operations 2010 2009 capital Principal activities
ny HM Zﬁﬁaﬂg{ﬁaﬁﬁﬂﬂi/
RIREE ERAFAEZAD L BRARK/
WEAREE RS —E-ZF —ETNE AMEAEE  FEEHR
% %
Direct subsidiaries:
ERMEAR:
Ming Chuen Construction Hong Kong 100 100 Ordinary Investment holding
Company, Limited HK$100,000
BIEEERAT A% EER REER
100,000/ 7T
Yan Hei Limited (“Yan Hei") Hong Kong 100 100 Ordinary Investment holding
HK$10,000 and
Deferred (note i)
HK$10,000
CRERAR Bk Li@k100008 TR  REER
B (BIFE()
10,0007 7T
Indirect subsidiary:
BEHRBLR:
Xiamen South East PRC 100 100 Registered Hotel operations
Asia Hotel Company, Limited capital
(“Xiamen Plaza”) (notes ii) US$5,000,000
EMRARREEERAF FE AfER BIEER
(THOE) (BEG)) 5,000,000% 7T

Notes:

(i) The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and
no rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any

general meeting of the company. In the winding-up of the
company, holders of the deferred shares are entitled to
receive half of the amounts paid-up or credited as paid-
up on shares after the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company have received a total return of HK$10,000,000

per share.

GEE

(0

BIER D EEEIRRS - MR
BARRERRRAE ZiBEkH
FEREAAEHIRE ERE AT
EITERE ETEROHIFTE AR
NRIEAERFEABES LBRESGR
10,000,000 7T * 75 A # Y2 B 2 5
BRAD Bt sk A BR DIERUR 2 3 Bk
I8 o
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

18. B )& 2 v B2 (%8)

Notes (Continued): e (8&) -

RBEDRBEREERKILZFINEG

TERRIEGIER  WRICE2 &S
and is currently wholly owned by Yan Hei. e

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. BB A v BELS

ARE B AR F DT

(if) Xiamen Plaza was established as a Sino-foreign co- (ii)
operative joint venture company under the laws of the PRC

Details of the Group’s interest in an associate are as

106

follows:
Group Company
rE FAN|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNE —E-ZF —EENF
Cost of investment in an BERRIRERAK
associate, unlisted E 5,877,362 5,877,362 = -
Share of post-acquisition FEIE B R E T
results 4,160,988 2,914,016 - -
10,038,350 8,791,378 - -
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. B B A vl bEf: (4])
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had N_E—EF+_A=+—HBKk=
interest in the following associate: ZENFT_A=T—RAXEERZ

BEARFEBET:

Place of
establishment/ Proportion of
incorporation nominal value of
and principal registered capital Nominal value of
place of held by the Group issued registered
Name of associate operation 2010 2009 capital Principal activities
AEEEN
RIREE AMEAEBEZEAL BRfTZ
BENTRER EEm Y —E-%F “ETNE AMEAEE  FTEXH
% %
Fuzhou Harmony Piano Co., Ltd. PRC 25 25 Registered capital Design, manufacturing
(“Harmony Piano”) US$2,000,000 and distribution of
piano and related
products
BNREBZERAF FE A ER Rt &

2,000,000 7T iﬁ%ﬂ%&ﬁ%ﬁé%
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

20.

19. B B A vl bEf: (4])

(CONTINUED)
The summarised financial information in respect of the NEBEA N T T B E R it i
Group’s associate is set out below: T
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTENEF
Total assets BEE 82,832,074 75,305,798
Total liabilities FEN=R (42,678,675) (40,140,286)
Net assets BEFE 40,153,399 35,165,512
Revenue U z= 64,554,218 53,281,807
Profit for the year RE 3,600,287 3,121,772
INVENTORIES 20. ¢ 1%
2010 2009
—g-%F —TEINE
Consumables ZiaFEm 143,036 100,813
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21. TRADE AND OTHER

21. BB B LAt M B MR

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rE NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Zf ZETNE “E-TF —EITNF
Trade receivables EWE 5ER 952,053 994,419 1,000 -
Less: Allowance W R
for doubtful debts (160,430) (92,595) - -
791,623 901,824 1,000 -
Other receivables, Hih WA DRI
utility deposits and Re RBATE
prepayments 14,608,840 13,533,766 1,039,651 1,438,788
Less: Allowance B REEEE
for doubtful debts (12,398,426)  (11,861,926) - -
2,210,414 1,671,840 1,039,651 1,438,788
Total trade and B REMENERBE
other receivables 3,002,037 2,573,664 1,040,651 1,438,788
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21. TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts at the end of reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

21. BT B B JLfib M B MR 5k

(%)

BRER RFERREEHCHR
RIRBEZERE SRR ZRERD
T

Company
bW

2009 2010 2009

—ZE-%F —ZENF —E-ZF —TTNF

Current to six months ENEIZ N A A 791,623 901,824 1,000 -
Over six months and within one <18 A A R —E X

year - - -

Over one year HiB—F - - -

791,623 901,824 1,000 -

The average credit period on rendering services is 45
days.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate amount of HK$Nil (2009:
HK$8,769) which are past due as the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these receivables is 45 days
(2009: 45 days).

EEHFHO+AR-

RmEHER NEELRERB
HMEENECESRKREA(ZF
TNF 8,7698TT) - AKEIL K
HEBRERAEMNER-EEH
FHN+RER(ZEZAF:EH+R
R) e
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21. TRADE AND OTHER 21. & B B J i i Wi M 7k

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An aged analysis of trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

(%)

KT AREBEZEKE ZRF 2 RE
g N

Group Company
r5E b/
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Z% —ETNF ZE-FF C—TTNHF
Neither past due ABHRERE
nor impaired 791,623 893,055 1,000 -
Past due but not impaired BHEERE
Current to six months AEZE A - 8,769 - -

Over six months and within NEAURER—FHRA
one year - _ - _
Over one year HBiR—F = - - _

791,623 901,824 1,000 -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

KB R ERE 2 BYR BN Z
BT ER B RGBT -

BHEEREZEREERZEAEE
BERGTHHBILEP - RIFBHE
K ARREERRERR/UTE
SIERERE AEELAEELAE
PN e IS8 ot GBI SE IR = FA
EHEMIERERNERRERRTT-
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21. TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
on trade receivables is as follows:

(%)

21. BT B B JLfib M B MR 5k

ESRVRRRRREZEZESNT

Group Company
r5E NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Z% —ETNF ZE-FF C—TTNHF
Balance at beginning of FOEH
the year 92,595 1,025,453 - -
Impairment loss recognised WEEBER 64,154 12 - -
Amounts written off during the T A E £ 3£ U
year as uncollectible MEzeHE - (933,164) - -
Foreign exchange translation R 6
gains 3,681 294 - -
Balance at end of FERE®
the year 160,430 92,595 - -
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts HiEWRRRERE2EEHOT
on other receivables is as follows:
Group Company
r5E NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-Z% —ETNF ZE-TF C"TTNHE
Balance at beginning of FNEA
the year 11,861,926 11,755,738 - -
Impairment loss recognised REBEER 68,994 68,788 - -
Foreign exchange translation B o
gains 467,506 37,400 - -
Balance at end of FEEH
the year 12,398,426 11,861,926 - -
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21. TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the allowances for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables and other
receivables with balances of HK$160,430 and
HK$12,398,426 (2009: HK$92,595 and HK$11,861,926)
respectively. The individually impaired receivables related
to customers that were in financial difficulties or in dispute
and the management assessed that the recovery of

21. BT B B JL b M B MR 5k
(%)

REEBETIREENREZE SR
H A E UL BR 30 Bl B A5 #2160,43078
T }12,398,4267 8L (Z T NLF ¢
92,5957 7T 52 11,861,926 7T ) 1
BBk (B i Wi 5% T R 3R B IR IR B ok
Uz BFEEREEREERATS
WEZERE A EBAZSEHBE

the amounts is doubtful. The Group does not hold any EH AR ELR o
collateral over these balances.
An aged analysis of impaired trade and other EREESRHEMEWNEKRZERRS
receivables is as follows: T
Group Company
rEE VN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-%F —ETNE —E-ZF ZEENF
Current to six months BEZE N EA 1,933 - - -
Over six months and within one ~ N1EA M £ K& —F R
year 22,974 - - -
Over one year BE—F 12,533,949 11,954,521 - -
12,558,856 11,954,521 - -
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22. TIME DEPOSITS/BANK 22. e WA AR AT &5 B
BALANCES AND CASH B4
Group Company
*EH AAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—8-8% _"TTNF —B-BF _"TINF
Cash at bank and RITMFHEES
in hand 3,327,278 3,455,914 2,679,818 2,258,891
Short-term bank deposits RUETER 34,587,610 13,791,886 34,587,610 13,791,886

37,914,888

17,247,800 37,267,428 16,050,777

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The short-term bank deposits
carry fixed interest rates which range from 0.05% to
1.875% (2009: 0.02% to 1.71%) per annum.

The time deposits of HK$18,584,280 carried fixed interest
rates which range from 0.02% to 1.98% per annum for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

At 31 December 2010, the time deposits, bank balances
and cash of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$22,815,891 (20009:
HK$16,624,000). The remittance of these funds out of
the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.

RITEBRBZBHRTERZFHHNE
ATE-RERITERCBEITFEAER
0.05[E £1.875[E Z [E E M| R5T & -
(ZZEZNF: FHME0.02EE1.71
) -

BHE-_ZTNF+-_A=+—HFH
17 7118,584,280/% T 2 I 17 F F| X
FH0.02EE1.98E 2 B FEFIRHH -

RZE—ZETF+=_RA=+—H"
AREBTFEHEHR BITEH LB
EBARB(TARKE])&ERY
7S #22.815,801 (RZZEZ N F:
16,624,000/ 7T ) « R Bl 2 B E 1T
HNFEEEYE o
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. B 5 B LA HE A Mk

Group Company
r5E NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2f —ETNF —E-ZF ZEENF
Trade payables BAEMER 1,309,843 943,236 8,500 -
Other payables HEMIRR 8,035,204 9,009,808 959,086 610,218
Total trade and other payables B 5 & H it (T BR &5 9,345,047 9,953,044 967,586 610,218
Less: Other payables classified  Jil : £t B ERZ DB A
as non-current liabilities FERBEEHH
(note) (B3sE) (5,894,350) (5,670,863 - -
3,450,697 4,282,181 967,586 610,218
Note: B &L -
Pursuant to the Management Contract, Friendship International BRBEEEAR  FECRFBZTARE
paid RMB5 million, equivalent to HK$5,894,350 (2009: 5,000,0007T ' #f & #5,894,350/% 7T ( =
HK$5,670,863), as security deposit to Xiamen Plaza, which TETNF:5,670,863B L) EAREIE
is refundable upon expiry of the Management Contract. The T HRRBREANERSG R EER
expiry date of the Management Contract is 9 March 2013 and, m-ERERIHEBR-T—=F=H
accordingly, the balance of security deposit is classified as non- NB - Eit ZREESHEIIEER
current liabilities. BfE-
An aged analysis of trade payables at the end of the ENESRINREERRLEEBDZ
reporting period is as follows: RiRommT:
Group Company
r5E FAUNG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Ff ZTENE —E-ZF —ZZTNE
Current to six months BIEZ N8 A 734,704 878,428 8,500 -
Over six months and within NEAUER—FHUA
one year 467,288 48,686 - -
Over one year HBiR—F 107,851 16,122 - -
1,309,843 943,236 8,500 -

The average credit period is 45 days.

FHEEHRAO AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT-—ZTFE+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24. Y& %t Bt W

The following are the major deferred tax balances NTAREERAFERBAFE
recognised and movements thereon during the current R EERERIBAEBRREEE)
and prior year:

116

Group

Deferred tax liabilities

A K
A BT

Accelerated

tax Fair value
depreciation gain Total
MEHRBEITE AFEKRS M
At 1 January 2009 —EENF—HA—H 7,831,892 1,888,571 9,720,463
(Credit)/charge to profit TE s (Ee) il
or loss (note 9) (KF5E9) (1,679,686) 1,317,538 (362,148)
Effect of change in tax rate IRl 782,619 -~ 782,619
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF
+=—A=+—8H 6,934,825 3,206,109 10,140,934
(Credit)/charge to profit REz=EP (ER) S
or loss (note 9) (KF5E9) (594,525) 513,975 (80,550)
Effect of change in tax rate Rk & 598,534 - 598,534
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—FF
+ A=+—H 6,938,834 3,720,084 10,658,918
Deferred tax assets B %iE BLWUH
Tax losses
BIEEE
At 1 January 2009, R-BEZEAE—-BF—A8-
31 December 2009 and —EEAF+ZA=+—HEK
31 December 2010 R-E—-ZFEF+=-A=+—H 1,894,269




RBEZERERLH

—E-EFFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok 5 Y 5 9 % Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT-—ZTFE+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

24. DEFERRED TAXATION

24, EHEBLIH (%)

(CONTINUED)
Company ¥ NN
Deferred tax liabilities BEREAN
Accelerated
tax Fair value
depreciation gain Total
MERBITE AFEKRS M
At 1 January 2009 RZEZENF—H—H 5,698 1,888,571 1,894,269
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss  RiEzH (F%) S H
(note 9) (P 5£9) (4,489) 1,317,538 1,313,049
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF
+=—RA=+—8 1,209 3,206,109 3,207,318
Charge to profit RiERP S (M)
or loss (note 9) 9,851 518,975 523,826
At 31 December 2010 RIE—FF
+=A=+—H 11,060 3,720,084 3,731,144
Deferred tax assets B %o BV
Tax losses
HIEEE
At 1 January 2009, R-ZBEZAFE—-B—A8-
31 December 2009 “EEAFE+ZA=+—-HRK
and 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZEF+-A=+—H 1,894,269
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT-—ZTFE+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

24. DEFERRED TAXATION

24, EHEBLIH (%)

(CONTINUED)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated and
company statements of financial position, certain deferred
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

BERERABPBHERRKRZINKE
o REFEREBREENBELRE
o MBS HR BR ZREH IR
DM

reporting purposes:

Group Company
r5E NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZF —ZThNF ZE-BF C"TTNHE
Deferred tax assets EREHBEE 1,894,269 1,894,269 1,894,269 1,894,269
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBAE (10,658,918)  (10,140,934) (3,731,144 (3,207,318)
(8,764,649) (8,246,665 (1,836,875  (1,313,049)

At 31 December 2010, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$139,952,543 (2009: HK$138,083,275) available for
offset against future taxable profits that may be carried
forward indefinitely, except the amount of HK$Nil (2009:
HK$4,526,294) arising in the PRC which is due to expire
within one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the subsidiary operating in the PRC in which
the losses arose. At 31 December 2010, deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses of
HK$11,480,421 (2009: HK$11,480,421). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax
losses of HK$128,472,122 (2009: HK$126,602,854) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

RZE—ZEF+_A=+—H =K
£ HF1389,952,543B L (—ET N
% :138,083,2758 70) 2 25t i 1E
BEAERBAE EERFT (=
BTN EF 4,526,204 7T) R P E
AEEAZ BB HKHEZERS
Bl AFEAE 4 Z B AR BEEMNR
—FRARAFANEF- R —FTF
+—A=+—H BHRAELH
THE E T IE BT 18 511,480,421
T (ZZZT AF:11,480,42178 7T)
AR AREETERT B & <5 ) - i I %
128,472,122 L (Z T NF:
126,602,854/ 7T ) » 2 5 FL 1B & 8
MR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT-—ZTFE+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

25. SHARE CAPITAL

25. JBe A

BEZERERAT
T TFEFR

2010 2009
—E-%% ZTENE
Number Number
of shares HK$ of shares HK$
REHA B REHH BT
Authorised EEREK
Ordinary shares of BREE0.1258 T2
HK$0.125 each LR 3,040,000,000 380,000,000 3,040,000,000 380,000,000
Issued and fully paid BETRARRAK
At beginning of year FHE % 532,780,000 66,597,500 532,780,000 66,597,500
Exercise of share options under  17{# (& S B izt 2
the Company’s employee (FF5E30)
share option plan (Note 30) 1,460,000 182,500 - -
At end of year RELK 534,240,000 66,780,000 532,780,000 66,597,500

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 1,460,000
share options were exercised at a subscription price of
HK$0.184 per share, resulting in the issue of 1,460,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.125 each in the capital of
the Company and giving a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$268,640.

26. RESERVES

(A) Group

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 49.

HE-_ZE-ZF+-_A=+—HILF
[+ 1,460,0000% & IR FEI(E0.1257 7T
2 EBREBIBIZEGR0.184E T2
MARE 1T - 830 & (B 49268,640

BT e

26. fifi i

(A) A4

AEERERD T FERAE
MEZGERREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT-—ZTFE+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

26. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

26. i il (#1)

(B) Company (B) A& 2 ¥
Share-based
Share compensation  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
DYT]
XATERH
KB EE He itk Rt EE CEl
Note (i)
()
At 1 January 2009 RZZZnE—-A—H 576,304,933 268,640  (586,982,216) (10,408,643)
Profit for the year REE R - - - -
Other comprehensive income FEEAMZEYA
for the year - - 9,892,365 9,892,365
Total comprehensive income FEE2ENGLE
for the year - - 9,892,365 9,892,365
At 31 December 2009 RZZENETZA=1T—H 576,304,933 268,640  (577,089,851) (516,278)
Loss for the year REE R - - (1,258,991) (1,258,991)
Other comprehensive income FEEERZENE
for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income FEEZENEBE
for the year - - (1,258,991) (1,258,991)
Issue of ordinary shares under REESBRETEIRTLER
employee share option plan 354,780 (268,640) - 86,140
At 31 December 2010 BW=2-25+-A=+-H 576,659,713 - (578,348,842) (1,689,129)
Notes: M5

(i) The application of share premium is governed
by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

(i) At 31 December 2010, no distributable reserve of the
Company was available for distribution as dividends

(2009: Nil).

() BOaBZERZEBRRGIE

ASBIRFTEEE -

(ii) S
/D\
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)

HE-_Z-ZF+-_A=1+—BFE UETIIR)
27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

27. ¥ A B 4 B

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts
(including trade and other payables), cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure regularly. As a part of this review, the
management of the Group considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and the issue of new shares as well
as the issue of new debts.

Gearing ratio

AEBERRER  URERAEEHE
TERBREESELLER Ry
BEBECEBRBRAERBRRSE
ROl N E 2 EERE A F —
o

AEEZEARBOEERE (RIEE
SREMENER) BeRBPLE
BIEA ARA DTG A EE -
BIEDBTRA RS-

AEBEEEETHMEMNEARE -
AEHEEREEEEBREARARE
MERNZEABNRBIESENNE
A REBEERERERS &
TR R EITHNESATEER
BARRE -

fA R

2010 2009
—E-TF —EENF
Debt (note i) B8 (M 5Ei) 3,450,697 4,282,181

Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEER (37,914,888) (17,247,800)
Net debt BEFFHE (34,464,191) (12,965,619)
Equity (note ii) AR (MIREi) 129,713,868 126,574,597
Net debt to equity ratio R AE TR B AR A M A b R N/A N/A
Notes: B3

(i) Debt comprises trade and other payables as detailed in (i) BEEBEES REMENT  FE

note 23. ;I FE28 ©
(i)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group. (i) BEERBEAEEMEEARRFE

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT-—ZTFE+-A=+—AFE (UWBTIIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. @ T H

INER AN e ]

instruments
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Financial assets BKEE
Loans and receivables Bk EWR A
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 I E A e UL BR 3R 1,837,541 1,193,823
- Time deposits —TEHFER - 18,584,280
— Bank balances and cash —iRTHEBERE 37,914,888 17,247,800
39,752,429 37,025,903
Financial liabilities MEaE
Amortised cost B SH R AR
— Trade and other payables — B REAMENAERER 8,730,525 9,433,410

(B) Financial risk management

objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, time deposits, bank
balances and cash, and trade and other payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the
Group’s exposure in respect of financial instruments
or the manner in which it manages and measures the
risk.

< il e B A B H B A
B oK

AEB7FESRTAEBRRE
g5 RHEMEWRIE  E BT
FROTERERE - EHK
EMENER - ZES/ITA
FER SR E T XXHET
HZEeRITAEEE AR K
MR EZERBZBE -E
BEEEMEEZERE XU
R MR A SHEIEE 28
ke

AEESRMIASNERACER
REERAILRBHE -
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HE_Z-—ZF+A=+—BFE (CABETIIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

28. &R T H (%)

(B) < ik bl B 4% BEL H B2 A1

(B) Financial risk management

objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk management

Substantial revenue and cost of the Group are
denominated in the functional currency of the group
entities. Certain other receivables, bank balances
and cash, and other payables are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy, as the
management considers the exposure to foreign
currency risk is insignificant to the Group. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is not exposed to significant fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group currently does not have interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Price risk

As the Group has no significant investments, the
Group is not subject to significant price risk.

BoR (#)

i 33 W B8
INE SR e B

REE T 2 Wam M2 AR
AR EBE-EET
Hfth FE YRR 5K - SR1T A5 8 o 3R
& R E MR RKAAINE &
EREM - AKEREYEL
ANEEEE M T A-EHERE
EemEE NSRRI
WA B85 E B E RSN R

LA
o0
2

o

F & 7 2 & FE

REBIWRA B R M K E
K IR 8 I R B i AN 5 I
BEMMEEHTA EBEHE
ERERMNEERNENBE
5 E B R EAM KRG -

1B 182 B

ARREBIREEARE
PTIAE R B B A B E R -
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(B) Financial risk management

objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the management considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)

HE_Z-—ZF+A=+—BFE (CABETIIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

28. &R T H (%)

(B) < ik bl B 4% P H B2 A1

BoR (#1)

1 £ L B

ARXZHFREBITES M
BHAEEMARSHEERE
KM BRERZEXREERRTD
A AR & B B AR ER P DI R w8 X
EMHEEZREAEMEL-

AREEREGEERR EEE
Bk #EABREEERE
HE FEHEREMEER
Fro REARBESRENR 1T E) B IR
BHER- WIRNEBEFER
REER AKERIERE
B8 5 EH 2 A Y= R -
R R B RIR - fEH R 59
ZREER -BLME  EEE
REAKEZEERBRE AR
PR AE

MRELT REBEREEFRZ
RIT BEBARBERZEE
[\ B R o

BERRSERSERRITAZ
RBEEFEETHEZEER
@ AKRBEALEEEEXN
ZEFMEEERR -



BEZERERAT
—E-EFFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk o U 5 A W
»h 1 EE
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

28. &R T H (%)

(B) < ik bl B 4% BEL H B2 A1

(B) Financial risk management

objectives and policies

BoR (#)

(Continued)

Liquidity risk management it ) 4 g 4 B

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group REERDESRARE  KN&E
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash BEELERReIERRS

equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities which
are included in the maturity analysis provided
internally to the key management personnel for the
purpose of managing liquidity risk. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash

BEEEREERBRAFTRE 2K
FAZFAREE 2 &8 KRB
RERERD T E-BEEE
ERHABE 2B WHER
BT E R

REBEEME

TRFVNAEEHTBHEE R
TEHIBMBER ZEARE
§|JJ\I"_JW“|3EEEM@}\A?ET
E-@mu@]ﬁ/fﬂ R A # 2 EI BR
DT o 325 &R R AR R
$§%WEI5§#\Z?$E%

flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date MEFEZFEFRHFEME °
on which the Group can be required to pay.
On demand 3 months Total Total
or less than to Over undiscounted carrying
one month 1 to 3 months 1year 1to5years 5 years cash flows amount
HR-EA -ZZf8f ZM@AZE-§¥ -FZif BREF FARRER HE
2010 —E-%%
Trade and other payables EARHBERER 121,914 1,300,687 909,783 6,398,141 - 8,730,525 8,730,525
2009 “EINE
Trade and other payables 5 REMERRR 3,539,830 157,909 64,808 5,670,863 - 9,433,410 9,433,410
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HE_Z-—ZF+A=+—BFE (CABETIIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(C) Fair value of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

(0

(i

(i)

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
traded in active market are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices
respectively.

The fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discounted cash
flow analysis is performed using the applicable
yield curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing
models for optional derivatives. Foreign
currency forward contracts are measured
using quoted forward exchange rates and
yield curves derived from quoted interest rates
marching maturities of the contracts. Interest
rate swaps are measured at the present value
of future cash flows estimated and discounted
based on the applicable yield curves derived
from quoted market prices.

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding those described
above) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

28. &R T H (%)

(C) &M TH2ZAFH

TREERERABZATE
BATHTAEE:

(i)

(ii)

BRI S R A R
BT EECEMEER
TREBEZAFETIDH
S2EMGABRIBEAER
BEHEMEE: &

TTETREZ R FEERR
PR B &8 - R BELR
HZEFER e (5
JEHENTATAMmMS) T
BEAMMER ¥ 5
R (BLEEITETAM
=) EEENAETR
RESRENIT - IMNEE
HI5 MR IR P iE HIE
MEaa Az R
MZEGHZF SR
B o M s IR R AFR
KR REREFE A
REBARTSREFHZ
R F S ARRER -

HivemEERSRAE
Z X FHETIRIE — AR IR
ZEBHEN ERRERE

TREDMMERE °

ARAREERREAMBRE
Freskz B EE R B AR
EHERENTERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)

HE-_Z-ZF+-_A=1+—BFE UETIIR)
29. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

29, MEME LB
A B By R AL

2010 2009
—E—EF —EENF
Minimum lease payments paid under REZRBELCERESN
operating leases during the year: 2 AR R
Premises LE 562,172 542,880
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the REERREEH  AEBNART]
Company had commitments for future minimum lease EBELRAATIE 2K EHE&RER
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which RN T
fall due as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Within one year R—FR 587,136 497,640
In the second to fifth year inclusive RZEZERFR 195,712 -
782,848 497,640
At 31 December 2010, operating leases related to office RZE—TF+_A=+—H B#
premises with a lease terms of two years. The Group does MAEMEEHERAMTE - ANEH
not have an option to purchase the leased assets at the REEHMEHHEEET ZBR
expiry of the lease period. fEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 (in HK Dollars)
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29. OPERATING LEASES 29.

(CONTINUED)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$1,272,720 (2009: HK$1,367,820). All of the Group’s
investment properties are held for rental purposes. The
Group leases its investment properties under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to four years (2009: 1 to 7 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments:

BEATLHE (4)

A7y MALA

RERBRzWERS KALY
B1,272, 7208 L (ZE2EZ N F:
1,367,820/ 70 ) ' NEB I EME
EEHBELERE ALEENEER
BT EYE M EZHAR
FPRAEARTFHY A ZNF (=T
THE: —F+LF) -

REERREER  AEB RARA]
HARARELERERHKIEN
FERIT

Group Company
K%M A7
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Z2f —EENF —Z-ZF —TTNF
Within one year —FR 3,162,084 3,169,703 495,480 1,228,920
In the second to MEZRFR
fifth years inclusive 5,111,473 5,289,575 182,200 370,880
8,273,557 8,459,278 677,680 1,599,800
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HE_Z-—ZF+A=+—BFE (CABETIIR)

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS

30. DA 2y RE i 2 32 %)

(A) Employee share-based A) DBy B2 R B

compensation benefits

Employee share-based compensation benefits
represent the fair value of employee services
estimated to be received in exchange for the grant
of the relevant options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair value
of the options at grant date. The amount for each
period is determined by spreading the fair value of
the options over the relevant vesting periods and
is recognised as employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserve.

(B) Share options

Purpose of the share options scheme

The purpose of the share options scheme is to
provide participants of the same with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and
to encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

st 190 45t A

ARt 2 9 /O 1 B #r Bl iE A1 -
HERE AR B RERGS
ARAEES R T HRBRRE
K EBRBHRFE EE
HAR L E B A BBREN
NFERFEEE-ENEER
MR M BEHA EER
RO R FEEMBOESRT
HABOFE AERERE
RAARR RAEAERES KN

(B 8 %M fE -

(B) ik JBe B

Jit JBE R it 3 2 H Wy

AtElZBR - ThAGTE2HE
ERURARBBEREAER
ZHE ZBREFHRIES
REAIRERNDZEE BERA
BRI Ml
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(B) Share options (Continued)

Eligible participants of the share options
scheme

(i) any executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director of any member of the Group
or an entity in which the Group holds an interest
(“Affiliate”); (i) any employee or officer (whether full
time or part time)(“Employee”) of the Group or an
Affiliate; (iii) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or an Affiliate who has, in the opinion of the
Board of Directors, contributed or may contribute
to the development and growth of the Group; (iv)
any customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant
or adviser of or contractor to any member of the
Group or an Affiliate; or (v) the trustee of any trust
the beneficiary of which or any discretionary trust the
discretionary objects of which include any director,
employee, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
consultant or adviser of or contractor to any member
of the Group or an Affiliate; or (vi) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser or contractor of any member of the Group or
an Affiliate.

Total number of securities issuable

The maximum number of shares which may be
granted under the share options scheme and any
other schemes involving the issue or grant of options
or similar rights over shares or other securities by
the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10%
of shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
share options scheme.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

30. DAy Py REE 2 32 %)
(%)

(B) Ji& B HE (%)

Yk JBCHE i 2 4 Ak S L

(AR EBEAKE QAR kA%
EREREacEB([BBA
Bl ZHITES FENTE
ERBULIERITES: (A5
BB EARZIEES KITH
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. By B 35 2 32 %)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) (%)
(B) Share options (Continued) (B) ok JBeHiit (%)
Maximum entitlement of each participant g 1 YCa Tk

Unless approved by the shareholders, no option
may be granted to any eligible participants which if
exercised in full would result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options already granted or to be granted to such
eligible participant under the share options scheme
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of such new grant.

Period to take up share options and
minimum period to hold before exercise

There is no minimum period within which the shares
option must be taken up or for which a share option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Amount payable to take up share options
and time to accept offer

An offer for the granting of share options under the
share options scheme shall be accepted within 28
days from the offer date and by way of payment of a
consideration of HK$1.

Maximum period for exercising on option

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the share options scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the
Board of Directors to each participant, which period
may commence on the date on which the offer for
the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of the option.

R B RALAE SN AR & B4R
SEELARBRER ZFHB
PR BITER ZEEITR
D8 ARRIE B REE 8
BRI ERR B RE
(BREDITE  EHRRITER
PR BITERK THRITZIK
DR RNBEHMIRAH (8
EEB)IETZEAHEATE
BRARARHFHLE AR #E
TR Z1% °

2 U B 2 300 Y e AT i
B Jod 4 A 81 1)

REREY BN ARBRMAR
TEAFEZERHAB 2R

F o

b il D DB i 2 WAk O e 2
AR 0

1R 15 B I 5 811t 3% e A
ZEZH -ABREZARES
“HNABARZARENETZ
TR

A 1 Dl B M 2 dge 45 091 1B

3 P 4 P AR 9 B R RT B 16K
REZERETLANEEAR
AZBRAERTE ZHE
ARBERkELRERRHF
1 R EMIBR T RER
BRI B ARt T 1R 45
o
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(B) Share options (Continued)
Exercise price

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the
Board of Directors of the Company and shall not be
less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of a share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant option, which
must be a business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the relevant option; and

(i) the nominal value of a share.
Life of the share options scheme
The share options scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of two years commencing on
the date of adoption of the share options scheme.

30. DAy Py REE 2 32 %)

(%)

(B) Jif B it ()
7 B

TEENARFESEHEE
RIZEBR ETEIRTI=
EZR=E:
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(i
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RETA KT 2 D
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(B) Share options (Continued)

Life of the share options scheme (Continued)

The following tables disclose the movement of the
Company’s share options held by directors and
employees for the year ended 31 December 2010

30. DAy 2y REE 2 32 %)

(%)

(B) J Be b (7))
U I B T B 2 A O (#)
REBEZE2E_Z2—2F+ = A

=t+t—BIER-_BEhE+—
A=+—HAUtRFEERKET

and 31 December 2009: BRI e

2010 —E-FF

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired Outstanding

at during during during during at

1/1/2010 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2010

RZZ2-ZF RZZ-ZF

-A-B +=ZB=t+-H

i R AT RERER REREFRE RAEHE RAREEH i R AT

No. of share options RRE 1,460,000 - (1,460,000 - - -

Exercise price 1B HK$0.184 = HKS$0.184 - - -
2009 —ZETAF

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired Outstanding

at during during during during at

1/1/2009 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2009

RZZZhE RZZTNEF

-B—-8 +-R=1+-H

HARITE RAERH RAE(TR RAEHE RAEEH HARITE

No. of share aptions AlEs 2 1,460,000 - - - - 1,460,000

Exercise price 1B HK$0.184 - - - - HK$0.184

The 1,460,000 share options exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2010 resulted in the
issue of 1,460,000 ordinary shares of the Company
and new share capital of HK$182,500 and share
premium of HK$86,140 (before issue expenses),
as further detailed in Note 25 to the financial

statements.

The closing price per share immediately before the
date on which the option for 1,460,000 shares was

exercised on 14 May 2010 was HK$0.64.

HE-Z—ZTF+-_A=+—H1
FEZ o AQFIB1,460,00017 B A% #E
T4 o Ik - AR 8] 971,460,000
%A% 48 A% 7K A182,50058 7T &
HEE 2 % B 586,140/8 7T (A HHRE 3
FTBRA R B RER M 25
— S HRERE e

REE_ZFT—FFHRATWAE
1,460,00017 BE IR #E Al < IR IREE
8 750.64% 7T
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(B) Share options (Continued)

(B)

Life of the share options scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses the Company’s share
options held by directors and employees as at 31

December 2009:

30. DAy Py REE 2 32 %)
(%)

Ji I b ()
W JBE A il B =2 A Ol (B1)
RZZEZNF+-_A=+—8

IRFEERETIZEREY
EBEWT:

2009 —ZEENF
Number of
Exercise share options
Name of director/ Date of price outstanding and
Category grant Exercise period per share exercisable
RITER
AITEZ
EXEB/9E #t i B TEH BRITEE BREHA
Director
Bx
Mr. Wang Xiaowu 3 June 2004 3 June 2004 - 2 June 2014 HK$0.184 1,040,000
AN
Employee 3 June 2004 3 June 2004 - 2 June 2014 HK$0.184 420,000
B8
Total
Fok:C] 1,460,000
Notes: P 5T -

(i) No options were granted under the share options ()
scheme and none of the share options expired during
the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

(if) None of the directors and employees exercised their (ii)
share options during the year ended 31 December

2009.

(i) The exercise in full of the outstanding vested options (iii)
would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of additional 1,460,000

ordinary shares.

HE-T-TET-A=+-AR
—EEAFTAS+—AFES
P 3 AR SR AR A B Tt it B
BRE * B - 3 A AR A 7 <

RE-TTAST-A=t+-A%
5 B 55 U B8 9 T 0 R
e

BT ARITEROMAEM L BRESE
RBERERNEER ZFBERES
T RIS I35 171,460,000 38 % -
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31.

32.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the plans are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiary
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of HK$440,393
(2009: HK$395,132) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the plans. There was no outstanding contribution as at 31
December 2010 and 2009 respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties:

31.

32.

S8 Pk A

AR EAR IR o8 B 1 A TR 2 5 &R DI
REMABBREREERL —HBESE
Al FrEFMEEREAREEAD

B A A AEE -

AR S B 7 o B K e 2 B I 1 BB PR
FEZEMRRA 2H-THEKEE
FHE MO R AR 2 ) AR KRR A AT B < B
BARABABRTEXRANEEEDL
b R AR KRR M A B R - NER B
BRABMEAE 2 —SEIELETE

HK o

FMESXHEAERGEEEAREERA
440,39378 70 (ZFZE N4 1 395,132
BT ERERAEBRB GG EIF
HRZIETLR - DRR T —FF
T+ A=+t BR-ZEZAF+ =
A=+—HBoREBmAEREEE-

BN L2 R 5

REBRANEREETL FIIEEA
TZXR5:

Related parties Nature of transactions Note 2010 2009
BEAL REBE B 5 —Z-2F —ZEENF
Fellow subsidiaries Office, directors’ and staff quarters rental (i) 226,200 542,880
B yEEYNG] BEYE - EEREEBFHS

Building management fee (i) 43,674 104,818

BFERER
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Office, directors’ and staff quarters rental, and building
management fee paid to fellow subsidiaries are based on
rates mutually agreed between the parties involved.

(i) Extension of operating period of Xiamen Plaza

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by Yan Hei
and Railway Department on 1 October 1985 for co-
operation on the construction and operation of Xiamen
Plaza and as supplemented and amended subsequently
on 18 December 1987 and 21 January 1992 (the “CJV
Agreement”), the operating period for Xiamen Plaza will
end on 11 December 2015. On 6 June 2005 and 20 July
2005, the Company announced that, Yan Hei entered
into an extension agreement with Railway Department,
and Fujian Enterprises (Holdings) Company Limited
(“Fujian Enterprises”) (as a guarantor) on 9 May 2005
(“Extension Agreement”), in which, amongst others, the
operation period of Xiamen Plaza will be extended for
an additional 10 years up to 31 December 2025 and a
change in the terms of the CJV Agreement in respect of
the annual amounts to be distributed by Yan Hei to Railway
Department. Pursuant to the terms of the Extension
Agreement, Yan Hei has agreed to pay annual distributions
to Railway Department during the operating period of
Xiamen Plaza up to year 2025 as set out below:

2005 to 2006: US$70,000 per year
2007 to 2011: US$100,000 per year

2012 to 2025: US$200,000 per year

32. A L2225 (#])

W i :

(i)

AEERARBZRARMER
AXMZEERFE BEER
BEIEsHERAREEREET
NETRE TEE -

ERREZ K&

BECEEHKER—NALNR
F+A—BEMUAAEEE
Mg & ZORE 2 IE R R Ak
BARNMZHBE(HEZR
—hAWN\EF+ZAF+NEBE K
—hAN-F—A-+—HB#%x
KigE]) ([EHE])  RBZ
QBN —E—HE+ A
F+—BKRE-RZZZTRFA
AABEZZETERFLHA=-+
B AAREMH CEEHKD
RER (SE)BRAF ([#
MER]) (FERAERZ
EERFRAANBELEREW
H(IERBZE]) -BIEEE
EZEEHER_T—AF
+T_At+—BHE#ER-EEWH
B (A BE) BIMNERBE
EREPEIKERTFEST
—HEF+=ZA=+—8 %%
WBEBEFHICED IR THE
RBrzHBBEz2EERBGR R
BERBZGER CEBERE
RRBEGEEHHEE ST
FIXNHRTFERER HEHE
HIEIAT

—EERFE_TERF:F
70,0003 7T

—TELFEFT—F 8
£100,000% 7T

—E-FE_T-_RF: T
200,000 7T
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

32. A A L2225 (#])

Notes: (Continued) MisE: (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future distributions under the Extension
Agreement which fall due as follows:

REERFEER  AEELKEHE
B2 RRDECHRTEIAT

2010 2009

—E-EF —ZEZTNF

Within one year —FR 778,217 775,477
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEEZRAFA 6,225,736 5,428,339
Over five years AR F 15,564,340 17,060,494
22,568,293 23,264,310

In addition, Fujian Enterprises irrevocably undertakes to
Railway Department that it will guarantee performance by
Yan Hei of its obligations under the CJV Agreement (as
amended and extended).

Railway Department is the joint venture partner of Xiamen
Plaza and is beneficially owned by the State Railway
Department. To the best knowledge, information and belief
of directors of the Company, having made all reasonable
enquiries, Railway Department is considered as an
independent third party as despite being a joint venture
partner, it has no effective interest in the operations of
Xiamen Plaza.

Fujian Enterprises is a trading conglomerate incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability, and under administration
of Fujian Provincial State-owned Asset Administration
Commission of the PRC. Both Fujian Enterprises and
the Company are ultimately owned by Fujian provincial
government of the PRC. There are no common directors
among Fujian Enterprises and any member of the Group.

BEAN - EREE R EIE R EL TR
BEAGE A K RECERET
HIREEERE (KEFTRER)
ZEE-

HEBRRBE A B BEKHF
EnEARBEREBH -BE
REH — I A BEREMA 5E
R BEHRREAGELEY
BERFE - EE N2 TR I &
B WRRBYE=T -

CH it Ol

ERER-FREBEMALZ
CEEEXESERLF] ATE
REEEAEEEREZBEEERE-
EMEENARRYHPEERE
BT &SR - EREEEREE
AR B AR B HARES-
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  32. B A L2 % (&)
(CONTINUED)
Compensation of key management FHEEHAB 2 HE
personnel
2010 2009
e —ETNE
Short-term employee benefits DHAB T127 1,925,000 1,958,000
33. PENDING LITIGATION 33. R T &Z2E

At 31 December 2010, Xiamen Plaza is a defendant in a
pending litigation arising from the balance due and interest
payable to Fujian Sunshine Group Limited of RMB268,716
(equivalent to approximately HK$317,000). The directors
of the Company consider that Xiamen Plaza has a good
defence against such claims and no provision has been
made in the consolidated financial statements.

N-BE-—ZTE+-_A=+—0 &
EBBERRTHZERLERE
EEAEEBERARLEHELAE A
268,716 A R (#1 & 49317,000
BL) EERARBHEEZIRE
ERTNEEEMI RERLES T
MRk EEL B



Particulars of Property Interests

LI R

Particulars of investment property interests held by the Group at

31 December 2010 are as follows:

Investment properties

REME

Leasehold
expiry

HAER A

Gross

floor area
(square feet)
HIEZEEE
(FHR)

REERZ
B2

=
o

2c

panl

Year of
completion

& B 12

BEZERERAT
—E-EFFR

—BF+- A=+ AFE
ST

Group’s
attributable
interest
rEE
A 4 3

Hong Kong
'iE

Commercial

[lEE7E S

1. Shop Nos. 1, 3 and 4
on Ground Floor together
with open yard adjoining
thereto and the whole of
First and Second Floors,
Sun Ming Court,
Nos. 84-90
Castle Peak Road,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon.

1. NEFRKYE
S 1L 7E84-905%
T RA A
iR 3458
JE & K EE
2RI —18
r-grE

2. Shop Nos. 50, and 65
on Ground Floor,
Shaukiwan Centre,
No. 407
Shau Kei Wan Road,
Hong Kong

2. BBLEEBATR
LEED )
#1502 6555 )5 f

2047

—FN+F

2859

AN =

10,464

10,464

876

876

1981

—NN\—%F

1982

—nNZF

50%

50%

100%

100%
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Gross Group’s
Leasehold floor area Year of attributable
Investment properties expiry (square feet) completion interest
BEEERE rE
REWE HAER B H (EHR) & B E A PEALRE 2
Others
Motor cycle parking 2047 - 1975 100%
space Nos. 54, 55,
56, 57 and 58 of
Yuet Ming Building,
No. 52 Yuet Wah Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon.
SRR ZEPAF - —NtERF 100%
A EA5255
AEAE
654 5556 57
5855 & B H A
Expiry of Gross floor Group’s
joint venture Site area area attributable
Hotel property period (square feet) (square feet) interest
i AR AR HIEEERE
SEIEY S Em A (FEHR) (EHR) rEH
Xiamen Plaza 2025 60,381 225,827 100%
908 Xiahe Road,
Kaiyuan District, Xiamen,
Fujian Province,
The People’s Republic
of China.
EFRmERAEE —E_hHF 60,381 225,827 100%
FE AR
BEE
E Pk ITE
= R ¥&9085%
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